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Board of Trustees 
Miami Valley Risk Management Association 
4625 Presidential Way    
Kettering, Ohio  45429 
 
 
We have reviewed the Independent Auditors’ Report of the Miami Valley Risk Management 
Association, Montgomery County, prepared by Clark, Schaefer, Hackett & Co., for the audit 
period January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012.  Based upon this review, we have accepted 
these reports in lieu of the audit required by Section 117.11, Revised Code.  The Auditor of State 
did not audit the accompanying financial statements and, accordingly, we are unable to express, 
and do not express an opinion on them.   
 
Our review was made in reference to the applicable sections of legislative criteria, as reflected by 
the Ohio Constitution, and the Revised Code, policies, procedures and guidelines of the Auditor 
of State, regulations and grant requirements.  The Miami Valley Risk Management Association 
is responsible for compliance with these laws and regulations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dave Yost 
Auditor of State 
 
July 19, 2013  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
 
Board of Trustees 
Miami Valley Risk Management Association 
Kettering, OH 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Miami Valley Risk 
Management Association (the Association) which comprise the Statement of Net Position as of 
December 31, 2012 and related statements of revenues and expense and changes in net position and 
cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have 
issued our report thereon dated June 21, 2013, wherein we noted the Association adopted the 
provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting 
and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA 
Pronouncements; GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, 
Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position; and GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously 
Reported as Assets and Liabilities. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Association’s internal control over financial 
reporting (internal control) to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association’s internal control.  
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention 
by those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Association’s financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Association’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Association’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 

 
 
Springfield, Ohio 
June 21, 2013 
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Profile of the Reporting Entity 
MVRMA is a consortium of municipalities located in southwest Ohio which formed an Association 
under Section 2744.081 of the Ohio Revised Code (ORC) to act collectively in addressing its members' 
risk management and risk financing needs.  It was incorporated on December 1, 1988, with six (6) charter 
members, including the cities of Beavercreek, Kettering, Miamisburg, Vandalia, West Carrollton and 
Wilmington.  As of December 31, 2012, MVRMA had grown to twenty (20) members, with Troy joining in 
1989, Montgomery joining in 1990, Springdale joining in 1991, Blue Ash and Wyoming joining in 1992, 
Indian Hill and Sidney joining in 1993, Madeira joining in 1994, Tipp City joining in 1996, Mason joining 
in 1997, Piqua joining in 2002 and the Cities of Englewood, Bellbrook and Centerville joining in 2004.  
The Association provides a combination of self-insurance, insurance and reinsurance for its members' 
property/casualty exposures; administers a claims/litigation management program; provides extensive 
safety/loss control consulting and training; and acts as a clearing house for risk-related information and 
financial reporting services for its members. 
 
MVRMA management, under the direction of the Board of Trustees’ Finance Committee, annually 
prepares a budget to provide for operating expenses and loss funding for the upcoming year.  All loss 
funds are segregated by loss year, and claims are paid from the funds collected for the corresponding 
occurrence date. Each year’s loss funding contribution is determined by an actuarial study conducted by 
an independent actuary.  Should any year’s operating expenses or losses exceed that particular year’s 
contributions, the Board of Trustees may call for supplementary payments from members, including 
withdrawn or expelled members, for the years of their membership.  
 
Economic Condition and Outlook 
MVRMA members are generally situated along the “I-75 Corridor” in the southwest quadrant of the state 
of Ohio.  This region has a first-class transit infrastructure providing access to major markets from the 
Midwest to the east coast.  Trucks have access to not only I-75, but also I-70, I-71 and I-65.  Two major 
airports, Cincinnati/Northern Kentucky International Airport and Dayton International Airport, provide 
transport by air to 55% of the country's population in only 90 minutes.  Additionally, this region is served 
by the CSX rail line which has access to all major cities and ports in the Midwest and along the east coast. 
 Cargo shipping is also possible along the Ohio River, which borders the state to the south.  13.4 million 
tons of cargo pass through Port Cincinnati annually. Like the rest of the country, this region’s economic 
outlook for 2013 is somewhat uncertain due to government and regulatory changes, the cost of fuel, 
banking policies, unemployment and the real estate market. 
 
The Cincinnati metropolitan area added thousands of jobs in 2012, but the Dayton metro had the weakest 
growth of the state’s largest metros. Last year, the average unemployment rate for the Cincinnati region 
was 7.1%, while the average unemployment rate for the Dayton area was 7.5%. 
 
Dayton Area 
The real estate market is showing signs of improvement in 2013. Local commercial real estate experts 
anticipate growth, especially in the industrial sector. Because commercial property in the Dayton area is 
some of the least expensive in the country, commercial realtors are receiving inquiries from regional and 
national companies. Some of the greatest commercial real estate growth will continue to take place at the 
142-acre mixed use development at the Austin Road interchange, south of Dayton, and in the 
communities around Wright Patterson Air Force Base. Generally, the retail sector is starting to improve 
as are home sales. 
 
Wright Patterson Air Force Base accounts for $4.5 billion of the local economy. With 27,000 employees, 
it’s the largest single-site employer in Ohio and supports thousands of additional off-base contractors. 
Much of the area’s economy is tied to missions at WPAFB. 
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Manufacturing still accounts for 20% of the region’s payroll. The auto industry, which still has a presence 
in the area, is expected to make gains in 2013. In Tipp City, Abbott Laboratories is investing $270 million 
in a nutritional drink facility and will employ approximately 240 people. One hundred workers will find 
employment at the 83,000 square foot food processing facility being constructed by White Castle in 
Vandalia. In all, more than two dozen regional manufacturers are investing in excess of $470 million to 
expand and upgrade their facilities. 
 
There are 35 institutions of higher learning in the area that employ a total of 36,700 employees. These 
colleges and universities have a direct and indirect economic impact of $3.2 billion annually. 
 
The 27 area hospitals also make a sizable contribution to the local economy with a yearly impact of $6.77 
billion. By employing 31,300 people and securing goods and services locally, they exert considerable 
influence on the region. 
 
Cincinnati Area 
The Cincinnati area anticipates economic growth in 2013, albeit slow. Julie Heath, Director of the 
University of Cincinnati’s Economics Center, anticipates a growth rate of 2.4%. 
 
This region’s labor market has seen a rebound, but it has varied across industries. Cincinnati’s 
manufacturing of durable goods regained approximately 98% of its pre-recession jobs, and the education 
and health services sector actually exceeded where it was prior to the recession. In fact, six of the ten 
largest local employers are found in the education and health services sector. Gains were also realized in 
financial services and market research. 
 
Housing starts are increasing, but the construction sector is not expected to surpass pre-recession levels 
in the near future. Currently, there is about four months of new housing inventory, which is a definite 
improvement over the 12-month supply just three years ago. 
 
Overall, home sales are improving as is the average sale price. This trend is expected to continue, 
especially with consumers able to take advantage of record low interest rates. 
 
There was a decline in local government jobs in 2012, and this sector is not expected to rebound as 
quickly as the private sector. Factors affecting this recovery are budget constraints and the unwillingness 
of voters to support higher taxes and/or reduced services. 
 
Insurance/Reinsurance Market Outlook  
In 2012, the property and casualty insurance and reinsurance marketplace recovered from the 
challenging 2011 catastrophic losses. Although the industry did incur a major catastrophic loss with 
Super Storm Sandy at the very end of the hurricane season, the overall impact of this storm was nowhere 
as significant as the combined catastrophic losses in 2011. And, even with the Sandy losses, the industry 
will still experience a profitable year with resulting higher levels of capital and surplus. The major 
influence currently driving the marketplace seems to be the lack of investment income. While rising 
levels of capital and surplus have traditionally signaled a softening marketplace, the lack of investment 
income seems to be driving a marketplace that is slightly harder and more conservative in spite of recent 
profitability. Underwriters seem somewhat cautious without the traditional investment income to 
augment profitability. There is also a decreased appetite for flood coverage, and the possibility of 
reduced flood capacity could result in a reduction of those limits for 2013 renewals. 
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Long-term Financial Planning  
Having found what it considers a successful formula for long-term financial planning, MVRMA 
continues to expand on previously developed programs while being mindful of any new opportunities: 

 MVRMA’s Shock Loss Fund, which was established as an internal funding mechanism to 
replace costly stop loss insurance, has surpassed its moving target of being equivalent to the 
current year’s annual loss fund. The loss funding amount to be contributed for 2013 is 
$2,500,000, while the Shock Loss Fund balance as of 12/31/12 was $3,143,752. 

 By participating in the insurance captive, Government Entities Mutual (GEM), MVRMA has 
been able to maintain a $500,000 self insured retention (rather than the previous $1 million) 
with little effect on the overall cost of coverage. Additionally, MVRMA received a rate freeze 
from GEM for the years 2011 and 2012. By increasing the GEM coverage layer from $1.5M to 
$2.5 in 2013, MVRMA’s rate freeze was extended to 2015. 

 MVRMA has continued to contract with Bond-Tech and SJS Investment Consulting Inc. as 
investment consultants in this very challenging financial market. Portfolios invested at the 
recommendation of both consulting firms continued to outperform established benchmarks. 

 Beginning in August 2012, MVRMA was able to obtain health insurance for its staff through 
the County Employee Benefits Consortium of Ohio. By participating in this very large group, 
MVRMA will now save thousands of dollars annually. 

 MVRMA participated with 21 other public entities in an agreement for electric generation 
and transmission services for the period March 2011 through December 2012. This 
agreement, which provides an annual savings of between $1,500 and $2,000, was extended 
through December 2013. 

 The Board took action in March 2013 to amend MVRMA’s Cash and Investment Policy. 
Having received a legal opinion that adherence to the Ohio Uniform Depository Act is not 
required, the following changes were approved: 

1. Investment in corporate bonds rated not lower than A2 by Moody’s or A by S&P 
is now permitted. However, no more than 50% of the investment portfolio shall 
be invested in corporate bonds, and no more than 5% shall be invested with any 
one corporate issuer. 

2. The requirement that no investment shall cause the average duration of the 
portfolio to exceed three years was deleted; however the policy continues to 
prohibit the purchase of securities with a maturity greater than five years. 

 
These changes were made to more closely align MVRMA’s duration of investments with 
cash flow needs, to better diversify the portfolio and to increase the return on investments. 
 

 Following its policy of returning unused loss funds to its members when a loss year is closed, 
MVRMA refunded more than $2 million when Loss Year 19 (2007) was declared closed in 
March 2013. This refund brings the total to nearly $11 million returned since MVRMA’s 
formation in 1988. 

 
Relevant Financial Policies 
The Amended Agreement and Bylaws of MVRMA provide the fiscal requirements of the Association 
including: requiring approval of the preliminary budget by September 30 each year and the final budget 
by December 31; identifying the underwriting information used to establish each member’s pool 
contribution factor; defining when supplementary payments shall be required and when and how 
surplus funds may be distributed to the membership. 
 
MVRMA adopted its Cash and Investment Policy in 1991 to indicate a conscious, formal effort to 
develop, implement and monitor the investment of all MVRMA funds. It was last amended in March 
2013 and is reviewed annually. 
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Major MVRMA Initiatives During 2012  
The fiscal period ending December 31, 2012, was a busy and productive year for MVRMA.  Among the 
Association's achievements were the following: 
 

 The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) 
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Miami Valley 
Risk Management Association for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal 
year ended December 31, 2011.  
 

 More than 1,000 participants attended 32 MVRMA sponsored training courses throughout 
the year.  

 
 MVRMA’s new website was launched in December. 
 
 MVRMA held its triennial Strategic Planning Retreat May 7, 2012 which resulted in amended 

goals and objectives for 2013 and beyond. 
 
 MVRMA’s Executive Director, Michael Hammond, retired at the end of July.  
 
 MVRMA welcomed its new Executive Director, Thomas Judy, the former MVRMA Trustee 

from the City of Sidney. 
 
 MVRMA closed Loss Year 17 (2005) and returned $1,276,154 to the membership. 
 
 MVRMA Trustees approved the replacement of the current claims software and to include a 

$50,000 line item to cover this expense in the 2013 budget. 
 
 MVRMA upgraded its technology with Microsoft 2010, Windows 7 and an in-house 

computer server. 
                                     
Awards 
The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to MVRMA for its comprehensive 
annual financial report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011. This was the 20th consecutive year 
that MVRMA has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a 
government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial 
report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal 
requirements. 
 
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only.  We believe that our current 
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's 
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 
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MIAMI VALLEY RISK MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION 
 

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

As of 
 

December 31, 2012 
 
 Member City          Trustee    Alternate 
 
 Beavercreek   Bill Kucera   Jill Bissinger 
 
 Bellbrook   Mark Schlagheck  Don Buczek   
 
 Blue Ash   Sherry Poppe   Amy Moore 
 
 Centerville   Steve Hinshaw   Gregory Horn 
 
 Englewood   Eric A. Smith   Janine Cooper 
 
 Indian Hill   Michael W. Burns       David M. Couch 
 
 Kettering   Nancy Gregory   Estelle Gibson 
 
 Madeira   Thomas Moeller  Annalee Duganier 
 
 Mason    Jennifer Heft   Mary Mueller 
 
 Miamisburg   Keith D. Johnson  Doris Bruck 
 
 Montgomery   James Hanson   Wayne Davis 
 
 Piqua    Stacy Wall   Cynthia Holtzapple 
 
 Sidney    Ginger Adams   Mark Cundiff 
 
 Springdale   Jerry Thamann   Derrick Parham 
 
 Tipp City   John Green   Jon Crusey 
 
 Troy    Patrick Titterington  Sue Knight 
 
 Vandalia   Julie Trick             Bridgette Leiter 
 
 West Carrollton    Thomas Reilly   Teresa Brooks 
 
 Wilmington   Dan Mongold   Brenda Woods 
 
 Wyoming   Missy O'Brien   Gary Baldauf    
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
 
Board of Trustees 
Miami Valley Risk Management Association 
Kettering, Ohio 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying statements of net position of Miami Valley Risk Management 
Association (the Association) as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related statements of revenues 
and expense and changes in net position and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes 
to the financial statements.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.  
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 
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Opinion  
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the net 
position available of the Association, as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the changes in net position 
and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. 
 
Emphasis of Matters 
 
Change in Accounting Principles 
As described in Note 11, during the year ended December 31, 2012, the Program adopted the provisions 
of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and 
Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements; 
GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources, and Net Position; and GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and 
Liabilities. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information  
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis on pages 4 to 8 and claims information on pages 24 – 26 be presented to 
supplement the financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the financial statements, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Information  
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. 
The introductory section (pages i to x), the actuary report (pages 29 to 153) and the statistical section 
(pages 155 to 183) are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the 
financial statements.  
 
The introductory section, the actuary report, and the statistical section have not been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 



 

2525 north limestone street, ste. 103 
springfield, oh 45503 

 
www.cshco.com 
p. 937.399.2000 
f. 937.399.5433 

 
 

cincinnati  |  columbus|  cleveland |  miami valley  |  toledo  |  springfield 
 
3 

 

 

 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 21, 2013 
on our consideration of the Association's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Association’s internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 

 
 
Springfield, Ohio 
June 21, 2013 
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The management of the Miami Valley Risk Management Association (MVRMA or Association) provides 
the following introduction, overview and analysis of MVRMA’s financial statements for the years ended 
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011.  This discussion and analysis is designed to assist the 
reader in focusing on significant financial issues and activities and to identify any significant changes in 
financial position.  We encourage the reader to consider the information presented here in conjunction 
with the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
The Association 
 
MVRMA is a consortium of municipalities located in southwest Ohio, which formed an Association under 
Section 2744.081 of the Ohio Revised Code (ORC) to act collectively in addressing its members’ risk 
management and risk financing needs.  It became operational in December 1988 with six charter 
members and now has twenty members. 
 
Basic Financial Statements and Presentation 
 
The financial statements presented by the Association are the Statements of Net Position, Statements of 
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position and the Statements of Cash Flows. As required by 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 10, the Association is accounted for as 
one enterprise fund.  
 
The financial statements that follow this Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the tables presented 
herein provide a summary of the Association’s financial position and results of operations for 2012 and 
2011, respectively, as restated for 2011 for retroactive implementation of GASB Statement Numbers 63 
and 65 (see notes to the basic financial statements). The Association first implemented GASB Statement 
No. 34, Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for State and Local 
Governments, in 2004; therefore, comparative numbers have been included for analysis purposes. 
 
 
The Statements of Net Position 
 
These statements report all of the Association’s assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2012 and 
December 31, 2011 categorized as current and non-current assets and liabilities. Assets consist mainly of 
cash and investments. Liabilities consist mainly of claims reserves and members’ refunds. The difference 
between total assets and total liabilities is reported as “net position.” Over time, an increase in net position 
generally indicates an improvement in financial position while a decrease may indicate a deterioration of 
financial position.  
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The following table presents condensed information on the Association’s net position as of December 31, 
2012, 2011 and 2010. 
  

2012 2011 2010
CURRENT ASSETS
  Cash and cash equivalents 11,227,552$    6,378,776$      9,377,288$      
  Accounts receivable 56,081 102,385 80,155
  Prepaid Expenses 203,669 161,011 164,495

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Investments 7,735,334 12,029,221 9,196,819

Capital assets less depreciation 19,641            9,621              10,299            

Total assets 19,242,277      18,681,014      18,829,056      

CURRENT LIABILITIES
  Claims reserve 3,636,562 4,242,820 4,128,314
  Members' refunds 2,740,454 2,017,740 3,064,283
  Members' credits 40,000 30,000 109,999
  Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 22,157 21,040 11,505
  Total current liabilties 6,439,173 6,311,600 7,314,101

TOTAL NET POSITION
  Invested in capital assets 19,641 9,621 10,299
  Unrestricted 12,783,463 12,359,793 11,504,656

Total net position $12,803,104 $12,369,414 $11,514,955

Condensed Statement of Net Position

 
 
The cash and cash equivalents balance was relatively high as of December 31, 2012 due to various 
callable securities being called shortly before year-end.  
 
Claims reserve is a liability for net unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses.  It is established annually 
with the assistance of an outside actuary.  In 2012, claims reserves decreased by $606,258 or 14.3% as 
a result of favorable development in the prior years’ ultimate losses. In 2011, claims reserves increased 
$114,506 or 2.8%.   
 

Line of Business 2012 2011
Auto Liability 21% 19%
General Liability 44% 55%
Property 35% 26%

% of Claims Reserves by Line of Business
As of December 31
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The liability for members’ refunds reflects the funds being held in MVRMA’s General Reserve Fund 
(GRF).  The General Reserve Fund accounts for surplus funds returned, but not yet paid, to members 
from closed loss years. Once surplus funds are returned to the members, these funds are deposited in 
the GRF to the account of each individual member. Members may withdraw their GRF funds within 30 
days after the closure of a loss year, or in January of each year, or for the payment of any MVRMA 
invoice at any time throughout the year.  The members’ refunds liability increased as of December 31, 
2012 due to the closure of a loss year in late 2012.  
 
Net position is divided into two categories, invested in capital assets and unrestricted.  The net position 
invested in capital assets represents the net book value of property and equipment, while the remaining 
net position amount is unrestricted for future use by the Association. Net position invested in capital 
assets increased from $9,621 to $19,641 during 2012 due to the purchase of computer equipment, 
including a new file server. Total net position increased by $433,690, or 4%, during 2012.  Total net 
position increased by $854,459, or 7%, during 2011.    
 
The Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
 
These statements reflect the operating and non-operating revenue and expenses for the previous two 
fiscal years and how the Association’s net position changed during the year. As noted previously, 
MVRMA’s net position increased by 4% from 2011 to 2012 and increased by 7% from 2010 to 2011.  
 
Note that 2011 amounts below reflect a reclassification due to the change to a preferable accounting 
treatment of amounts recovered or recoverable from reinsurers and excess insurers. The result is a 
decrease of $455,277 in both operating revenues and incurred claims and claims adjustment expense. 
Also, 2010 amounts reflect a reclassification of members’ dividends resulting in an increase of $1,512,034 
in members’ dividends expense and a decrease of the same amount in incurred claims and claims 
adjustment expense. Neither of these reclassifications affected net position.  
 

2012 2011 2010

Operating revenues: 4,171,048     4,283,938     4,143,479     

Operating expenses:
  Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses 1,182,409     2,080,913     1,195,748     
  Reinsurance/insurance premiums 807,647        761,789        753,793        
  Members' dividends 1,276,154     -               1,901,982     
  General and administrative expenses 733,355        691,571        677,469        

Total operating expenses 3,999,565     3,534,273     4,528,992     

Operating income (loss) 171,483        749,665        (385,513)       

Nonoperating revenue (expenses):
  Interest income and realized and unrealized gains 262,787        104,945        115,903        

   Other nonoperating revenue (expenses) (580)             (151)             -               

Total nonoperating revenue (expenses) 262,207        104,794        115,903        

Change in net position 433,690$      854,459$      (269,610)$     

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
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Operating revenue consists primarily of members’ contributions. The major categories of operating 
expenses are claims and claims adjustment expenses, reinsurance premiums, general and administrative 
expenses, and dividends to members. Non-operating revenue and expense is primarily related to 
investment activity.  
 
Member contributions made up 95% and 94% of the Association’s operating revenue for 2012 and 2011, 
respectively.   
 
Members’ contributions are tracked so that each year may be evaluated independently.  When preparing 
its annual budget, MVRMA determines the total amount needed to fund its operations and collects the 
amount needed from members in proportion to their claims history and risk exposures.  Each member’s 
allocation is determined by dividing the sum of the following seven factors by 9: 
 

1. The member’s population as of the most recent census as a percentage of the total of all 
members’ populations; 
 

2. The number of the member’s sworn full-time police personnel as a percentage of the total of all 
members’ full-time sworn police;  

 
3. The number of the member’s other full-time employees as a percentage of the total of all 

members’ other full-time employees; 
 

4. The number of the member’s titled vehicles as a percentage of the total of all members’ titled 
vehicles; 

  
5. The member’s insurable property values as a percentage of the total of all members’ insurable 

property values; 
 

6. The member’s net operating expenses as a percentage of the total of all members’ net operating 
expenses; and 

 
7. The member’s average annual adjusted losses for the last four years as the percentage of the 

total of all members’ average annual adjusted losses for the last four years (weighted three 
times). 

 
Changes in net position can vary widely from year to year. This variation is chiefly due to fluctuations in 
incurred claims expense and members’ dividends. Although the incurred claims expense is subject to 
variability, it is moderated somewhat by the insuring of losses above the pool’s self-insured retentions of 
$500,000 per occurrence for liability claims and $250,000 for property claims. Members’ dividends 
expense is incurred when the Board of Trustees closes a loss year and refunds the residual assets in the 
loss year to the members. These amounts can be significant and do not necessarily occur each year.  
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The Statements of Cash Flows 
 
The Statements of Cash Flows allow readers of the financial statements to assess the Association’s 
ability to generate sufficient cash flow to meet its obligations in a timely manner.  MVRMA’s net cash and 
cash equivalents increased as of December 31, 2012 as a result of the call of callable securities near 
year end.    
 

2012 2011 2010

Cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities 281,341$        (287,562)$       246,871$        

Cash flows used in capital and related financing
  activities (17,831)          (4,956)            (5,787)            

Cash flows provided by (used in) investing activities 4,585,266       (2,705,994)      1,833,455       

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 4,848,776       (2,998,512)      2,074,539       

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 6,378,776       9,377,288       7,302,749       
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year 11,227,552$   6,378,776$     9,377,288$      
 
2013 Projects and Future Plans 
 
For 2013, MVRMA again placed its first layer of liability coverage with Government Entities Mutual, a 
protected cell reinsurance captive domiciled in the District of Columbia.  This reinsurance layer had been 
$1.5 million excess MVRMA's self-insured retention of $500,000, but was increased to $2.5 million excess 
the $500,000 self-insured retention.  The next layer of reinsurance with General Reinsurance 
Corporation, which had been $8 million excess $2 million was decreased to $7 million excess $3 million. 
This restructuring resulted in a reduction of 2% in the total liability reinsurance premiums.  
 
Property insurance for the period 7/1/12-7/1/13 was again placed with Public Entities Property Insurance 
Program (PEPIP), the largest single property placement in the world.  MVRMA's premium rate increased 
by 25% due to a general hardening of the property market and two sizable claims experienced by 
MVRMA in 2011. At this time, MVRMA is preparing for its 7/1/13 renewal and is anticipating a rate 
increase of about 11% because of general market conditions and the continued impact of the large 2011 
claims.  
 
Contacting MVRMA 
 
This financial report is designed to provide members, creditors and investors with a general overview of 
MVRMA’s finances and to show MVRMA’s accountability for the monies it receives.  If you have any 
questions about this report or need additional information, contact Thomas Judy by writing 4625 
Presidential Way, Kettering, OH  45429 or calling (937) 438-8878. 
 



2012 2011

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,227,552    6,378,776      
Accounts receivable:
  Claims deductibles 30,096           74,865           
  Interest and other 25,985           27,520           
Prepaid Items 203,669         161,011         

Total current assets 11,487,302    6,642,172      

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Investments 7,735,334      12,029,221    

Capital assets:
 Audio-visual material 73,209           68,300           
 Equipment 55,072           51,491           
 Office furniture 23,275           23,275           
 Leasehold improvements 12,281           12,281           

Total capital assets 163,837         155,347         
Accumulated depreciation (144,196)        (145,726)        

Capital assets - net 19,641           9,621             

Total noncurrent assets 7,754,975      12,038,842    

Total Assets 19,242,277    18,681,014    

LIABILITIES 
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
 Claims reserve 3,636,562      4,242,820      
 Members' refunds 2,740,454      2,017,740      
 Members' credits 40,000           30,000           
 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 22,157           21,040           

Total liabilities 6,439,173      6,311,600      

NET POSITION:
 Invested in capital assets 19,641           9,621             
 Unrestricted 12,783,463    12,359,793    

Total net position $ 12,803,104    12,369,414    

MIAMI VALLEY RISK MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION, INC.
Statements of Net Position

December 31, 2012 and 2011

  See notes to the basic financial statements.
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2012 2011

OPERATING REVENUES:
 Members' contributions $ 3,965,398      4,027,567      
 Claim deductibles 169,168         229,751         
 Other 36,482           26,620           

Total operating revenues 4,171,048      4,283,938      

OPERATING EXPENSES:
 Claim expenses:
   Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses 1,182,409      2,080,913      
   Reinsurance/insurance premiums 807,647         761,789         
   Members' dividends 1,276,154      -                     

 Total claim expenses 3,266,210      2,842,702      

 General and administrative expenses:
   Professional fees 167,282         161,640         
   Salaries and benefits 448,643         438,514         
   Depreciation 7,231             5,483             
   Rent 36,400           36,400           
   Other 73,799           49,534           

 Total general and administrative fees 733,355         691,571         

Total operating expenses 3,999,565      3,534,273      

OPERATING INCOME 171,483         749,665         

NON-OPERATING REVENUE:
 Loss on disposal of capital asset (580)               (151)               
 Interest income 75,136           104,281         
 Unrealized gain on investments 187,651         664                

Total non-operating revenue 262,207         104,794         

 
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 433,690         854,459         

NET POSITION   
  Beginning of year 12,369,414    11,514,955    

  End of year $ 12,803,104    12,369,414    

MIAMI VALLEY RISK MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION, INC.
Statements of Revenues and Expenses and Changes In Net Position

For the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

See notes to the basic financial statements.
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2012 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
  Cash received for contributions $ 3,975,398 3,947,568
  Cash received for deductibles 213,937 200,907         
  Cash received from other sources 867,828         481,997         
  Cash payments for claims (2,635,011)     (3,482,778)     
  Cash payments for general reserve fund payouts (564,578)        -                     
  Cash payments for reinsurance premiums (850,388)        (776,186)        
  Cash payments for professional fees (165,249)        (141,340)        
  Cash payments for employment expenses (449,918)        (431,274)        
  Cash payments for rent (36,400)          (36,400)          
  Cash payments for other expenses (74,278)          (50,056)          

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 281,341         (287,562)        

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING 
 ACTIVITIES:
  Purchase of capital assets (17,831)          (4,956)            

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
  Purchases of investments -                     (2,831,738)     
  Proceeds from sale of investments 4,481,538      -                     
  Interest and dividends on investments 103,728         125,744         

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 4,585,266      (2,705,994)     

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 4,848,776      (2,998,512)     

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
  Beginning of Year 6,378,776      9,377,288      

  End of Year $ 11,227,552    6,378,776      

(Continued)

MIAMI VALLEY RISK MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION, INC.
Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

See notes to the basic financial statements.
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RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
 CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
  Operating Income $ 171,483         749,665         
  Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash 
    provided by operating activities:
     Depreciation 7,231             5,483             
     Change in operating assets and liabilities:
      Claims deductibles receivable 44,769           (28,844)          
      Prepaid Items (42,658)          3,484             
      Other receivables (16,162)          100                
      Claims reserve (606,258)        114,506         
      Accounts payable, accrued liabilities, members' credits and
      members' refunds 722,936         (1,131,956)     

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 281,341         (287,562)        

NON-CASH INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Miami Valley Risk Management Association, Inc. had an increase
  in the fair value of investments in the amount $187,651 during 2012.
Miami Valley Risk Management Association, Inc. had a increase
  in the fair value of investments in the amount $664 during 2011.

(Concluded)

Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

MIAMI VALLEY RISK MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION, INC.

See notes to the basic financial statements.
13



MIAMI VALLEY RISK MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION, INC. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 
 
 

 14

 
NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Miami Valley Risk Management Association, Inc.  (the “Association”) is an Ohio not-for-profit Corporation 
organized for the public purpose of enabling its member political subdivisions to obtain insurance 
coverage.  It provides methods for paying claims, and provides a formalized, jointly administered self-
insurance pool.  In addition to the self-insurance pool, the Association provides risk management 
services, loss prevention programs, and other educational programs and materials.  The members of the 
Association include the following cities within the State of Ohio:  Beavercreek, Bellbrook, Blue Ash, 
Centerville, Englewood, Kettering, Madeira, Mason, Miamisburg, Montgomery, Piqua, Sidney, Springdale, 
Tipp City, Troy, Vandalia, the Village of Indian Hill, West Carrollton, Wilmington and Wyoming. 
 
Basis of Accounting – The financial statements are presented as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 and 
for the years then ended and have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP) applicable to local governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (the 
GASB) is the standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting 
principles, which are primarily set forth in the GASB’s Codification of Governmental Accounting and 
Financial Reporting Standards (GASB Codification). 
 
Member and Supplemental Contributions – The Association has classified its revenues as either 
operating or non-operating.  Non-operating revenue primarily is the result of earning investment income.  
Member and supplemental contributions are recognized on the accrual basis and are recorded as 
revenue in the period earned.  Member contributions are estimated and collected annually to produce a 
sum of money within the self-insurance pool adequate to fund administrative expenses and claims of the 
Association and to create adequate reserves for claims and unallocated loss adjustment expenses. 
 
Under the terms of membership, should annual member contributions not be sufficient to fund ultimate 
losses, establish adequate reserves and cover administrative expenses, the Board of Trustees may 
require supplemental contributions.  Supplemental contributions may be assessed during the entire life of 
the Association and any later period when claims or expenses, which are attributable to any membership 
year during which the event or claim occurred, need to be paid.  Upon approval of the Board of Trustees, 
transfers from the Shock Loss Fund (“SLF”) (see note 6) may occur, in lieu of supplemental contributions.  
There were no supplemental contributions in 2012 or 2011.   
 
Cash and cash equivalents consist of deposits with financial institutions, and a State of Ohio depository 
institution, having an original maturity of 90 days or less. 
 
Claims deductibles represent the first $2,500 of any claim paid by the Association which is reimbursed 
by Association members. 
 
Investments are stated at fair value.  Realized gains and losses are determined on the identified cost 
basis.  Unrealized gain/(losses) are included in interest and other income. 
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The Association’s investment policy authorizes the Association to invest in the following: 
 

1.) United States treasury bills, notes, bonds, or any other obligation or security issued by the United 
States treasury or any other obligation guaranteed as to principal and interest by the United 
States; 

 
2.) Bonds, notes, debentures, or any other obligations or securities issued by any federal agency or 

instrumentality, including government sponsored enterprises.  All federal agency securities shall 
be direct issuances of federal government agencies or instrumentalities; 

 
3.) Deposits in eligible financial institutions; 

 
4.) Bonds, notes, or other obligations of the State of Ohio and its political subdivisions; 

 
5.) The State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAR Ohio) or such successor investment pools 

operated or managed by the Treasurer of the State of Ohio; and 
 

6.) No-load money market mutual funds consisting exclusively of obligations described in 1 or 2 
above. 

 
Capital assets are carried at cost.  Depreciation is provided on the straight-line basis at rates which are 
expected to amortize the costs of the assets over their estimated useful lives.  All major classes of 
depreciable assets have a useful life of five years, except audio-visual material which is three years. 
 
Claim Reserves and Unallocated Loss Adjustment Expenses – Provisions for claims reserves and 
claims adjustment expenses are based on information reported by members and are calculated by the 
Association’s claims administrator and actuary.  These amounts represent an estimate of reported, 
unpaid claims, plus a provision for claims incurred but not reported.  The Association’s management 
believes the estimate of the liability for claims reserves is reasonable and supported by valid actuarial 
calculations; however, actual incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses may not conform to the 
assumptions inherent in the determination of the liability.  Accordingly, the ultimate settlement of losses 
and related loss adjustment expenses may vary from the estimated amounts included in the 
accompanying financial statements.  Should the provision for claims reserves not be sufficient, 
supplemental contributions as discussed above may be assessed subsequent to Board approval. 
 
Members’ Credits – The bylaws of the Association provide that surplus operating funds may be used to 
credit future annual contributions at the discretion of the Board of Trustees.  For the year ended 
December 31, 2012, member contributions are presented net of a credit of $40,000 and for the year 
ended December 31, 2011, $30,000. 
 
Members’ Dividends – Closed loss year refunds were $1,276,154 for 2012 and $0 for 2011.  In addition 
to the closed loss year refunds, amounts relating to refunds of prior years’ insurance premiums can be 
credited to members.   
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Net position represents the excess of revenues over expenses since inception.  It is displayed in three 
components as follows: 
 
Invested in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation. 
  
Restricted consists of net position that is legally restricted by outside parties or by law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
 
Unrestricted consists of net position that does not meet the definition of “restricted” or “invested in capital 
assets, net of related debt.” 
 
As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Association has no “restricted” net position.  Under certain 
conditions, the Association may distribute all or part of the net position to those members who constituted 
the self-insurance pool during the years when such surplus member funds were earned, provided that 
such members must also be members of the Association in the year in which said distribution is made. 
 
In the event of termination of the Association, all members of the Association, past and present, are 
obligated for any necessary supplemental contributions attributable to the years during which they were 
members.  After all claims and related expenses have been properly paid or reserves established for the 
payment of any such claims, any surplus member funds shall be distributed to members in proportion to 
their interest in such surplus member funds. 
 
Income taxes – The Internal Revenue Service has ruled that premiums and investment income with 
respect to premium receipts are excluded from taxable income of the Association under Section 115 of 
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.  Therefore, the Association is not subject to tax. 
 
Operating Revenues and Expenses – Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated 
directly from primary activities.  For the Association, these revenues are member contributions and claims 
deductibles received from members.  Operating expenses are the necessary costs incurred to provide the 
services that are the primary activity.  All revenue and expenses not meeting these definitions are 
reported as non-operating. 
 
Use of Estimates – The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
NOTE 2 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Deposits as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 
 
Custodial Credit Risk – Custodial credit risk with respect to bank deposits is the potential for loss of the 
Association’s deposits in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution.  Protection of the 
Association’s cash and deposits is provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation as well as 
qualified securities pledged by the institution holding the assets.  By law, financial institutions must 
collateralize all public deposits.  The face value of the pooled collateral must equal at least 105% of public 
funds deposited.  Collateral is held by trustees including the Federal Reserve Bank and designated third 
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parties of the financial institution.  The Association’s investment policy states the amount of collateral 
provided will not be less than 110% of the fair market value of the net amount of the Association’s funds 
secured, except in the case of pooled collateral, where the collateral will not be less than 105% and 
overnight repurchase agreements, where the collateral will not be less than 100% of the fair market value 
of the net amount of the Association’s funds secured. 
 
At December 31, 2012, the carrying amount of the Association’s deposits was $11,227,552. The bank 
balance was $11,271,988, and of this amount, $281,950 was insured by federal depository insurance.  
Based on the criteria described in GASB Statement No. 40, “Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures”, 
$10,990,038 of the Association’s bank balance was exposed to custodial risk and was collateralized with 
securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent but not in the Association’s 
name. 
 
At December 31, 2011, the carrying amount of the Association’s deposits was $6,378,776. The bank 
balance was $6,432,832, and of this amount, $263,120 was insured by federal depository insurance.  
Based on the criteria described in GASB Statement No. 40, “Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures”, 
$6,169,712 of the Association’s bank balance was exposed to custodial risk and was collateralized with 
securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent but not in the Association’s 
name. 
 
Investments as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 
 
At December 31, 2012, the Association had the following investments: 
 

Less than 6 6 mo. to 1 Greater

Investment Fair Value months year 1 to 3 years than 3 years

FHLB * $ 999,743       -               999,743       -               -               
FFCB 416,423       416,423       -               -               -               
FHLMC 1,649,494    -               400,622       1,248,872    -               
FHLB 1,270,632    -               833,732       436,900       -               
FNMA 1,672,381    402,228       432,566       837,587       -               
Government Entities 
Mutual, Inc. (See Note 5) 1,235,966    -             -             -              1,235,966   

7,244,639    818,651     2,666,663  2,523,359  1,235,966   

Certificates of deposit included in investments on the Statements of Net Position:
Everbank CD 245,056       245,056       -               -               
Goldman Sachs Bank CD 245,639       -             -             245,639      -              

490,695       245,056     -                 245,639      -                  

Total $ 7,735,334    1,063,707  2,666,663  2,768,998  1,235,966   

* Callable securites: Estimated date of call used as maturity date for purposes of the table above.

Investment Maturities
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At December 31, 2011, the Association had the following investments: 
 

Less than 6 6 mo. to 1 Greater

Investment Fair Value months year 1 to 3 years than 3 years

FHLB * $ 6,001,830    -               6,001,830    -               -               
FFCB 422,050       -               -               422,050       -               
FHLMC 2,891,859    -               -               2,891,859    -               
FHLB 1,678,352    -               -               1,678,352    -               
Government Entities 
Mutual, Inc. (See Note 5) 1,035,130    -             -             -              1,035,130   

Total $ 12,029,221  -             6,001,830  4,992,261  1,035,130   

* Callable securites: Estimated date of call used as maturity date for purposes of the table above.

Investment Maturities

 
Interest Rate Risk – Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of investments will decrease as a result of 
an increase in interest rates. To limit interest rate risk, the Association’s investment policy limits security 
purchases to those that mature within five years of the settlement date.   
 
Credit Risk – Credit risk for holders of debt securities is the risk that the debtor will not be able to make its 
scheduled payments. The Association’s investments with the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, 
Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal National Mortgage Association and Federal Farm Credit Bank are 
rated AA+ by Standard & Poor’s.  The Association’s investment in GEM is not rated. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk – For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that an investor might be unable 
to recover the value of an investment in the possession of an outside third party should the counterparty 
to the investment transaction fail. The Association’s investment in Government Entities Mutual is subject 
to custodial credit risk. The Association’s investments in debt securities of FHLB, FNMA, FHLMC, and 
FFCB are either registered in the Association’s name or held in pledge accounts of the custodial financial 
institutions and the underlying records of the custodial financial institutions support the Association’s 
claim to the investments; therefore, these investments are considered to be held in the Association’s 
name and are not subject to custodial credit risk.   
 
Concentration of Credit Risk – The Association’s investment policy states “no more than 25% of the total 
investment portfolio shall be invested with any one eligible financial institution as a time deposit at the 
time a deposit is made, exclusive of United States Treasury securities, all Federal Agency securities, and 
STAR Ohio.”  Five percent or more of the Association’s investments were in the following at December 
31, 2012 and December 31, 2011: 
 

% as of % as of
Investment 12/31/12 12/31/11

Federal Home Loan Bank 29.4% 63.8%
Federal Farm Credit Bank 5.4% 3.5%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 21.3% 24.0%
Federal National Mortgage Association 21.6% 0.0%
Government Entities Mutual 16.0% 8.6%  
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NOTE 3 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital assets activity for the year ended December 31, 2012, was as follows: 
 

Balance Transfers/ Balance
01/01/12 Additions Disposals 12/31/12

Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Audio-Visual $ 68,300       4,909         -                 73,209       
Equipment 51,491       12,922       (9,341)        55,072       
Leasehold Improvements 12,281       -                 -                 12,281       
Office Furniture 23,275     -               -                 23,275     

Total Property and Equipment 155,347   17,831     (9,341)        163,837   

Less:  Accumulated Depreciation
Audio-Visual (62,698)      (4,771)        -                 (67,469)      
Equipment (48,757)      (2,420)        8,761         (42,416)      
Leasehold Improvements (12,281)      -                 -                 (12,281)      
Office Furniture (21,990)    (40)           -                 (22,030)    

Total Accumulated Depreciation (145,726)  (7,231)      8,761         (144,196)  

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, net $ 9,621       10,600     (580)           19,641     

 
NOTE 4 – SELF-INSURED RETENTION 
 
The Association retains responsibility for the payment of claims within specified self-insured retention 
limits prior to the application of coverage provided by excess insurance and reinsurance contracts.  The 
Association’s per-occurrence retention limit for all liability matters, excluding property, was $500,000 in 
2012 and 2011.  Property had a per occurrence retention limit of $250,000 for 2012 and 2011.  For all 
years, boiler and machinery had a per occurrence retention limit from $5,000 to $350,000 depending 
upon boiler size. For every occurrence, the member was charged a deductible equal to the amount of the 
claim or $2,500, whichever is less. 
 
NOTE 5 – INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE CONTRACTS 
 
The Association maintains insurance and reinsurance contracts with insurance carriers who provide 
various limits of coverage over the Association’s self-insured retention limits.  Under the Association’s 
bylaws, the Board of Trustees annually determines the types of insurance/reinsurance to purchase as 
well as appropriate limits.    
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For the loss years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Association purchased the following types of 
insurance/reinsurance in excess of the Association’s self-insured retention: 
  

Insurance/Reinsurance 2012 2011

General liability (including law enforcement) $9,500,000 $9,500,000
Automobile liability 9,500,000 9,500,000
Public official liability:
  Per occurrence 9,500,000 9,500,000
  Per member annual aggregate 9,500,000 9,500,000
Employment Practices Liability:
  Per occurrence 9,500,000 9,500,000
  Per member annual aggregate 9,500,000 9,500,000
Property (excluding flood and earthquake) 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Flood and earthquake - property - per occurrence &
  annual aggregate 25,000,000 25,000,000

Per-Occurrence Limits
(Except as noted)

 
 
In 2012 and 2011, MVRMA reinsured its casualty program with Government Entities Mutual (a protected 
cell reinsurance captive domiciled in the District of Columbia) for $1.5 million excess its $500,000 self-
insured retention and from General Reinsurance Corporation for $8 million excess $2 million. 
 
In 1996, the Association established a Shock Loss Fund (SLF) to replace the aggregate stop-loss policy.  
The Association’s members contribute to the SLF based on a moving target equal to the annual loss fund.  
The Association’s members annually fund approximately 15 percent of the moving target until the balance 
of the SLF is equivalent to the current year’s annual loss fund.  Once a member has at least the current 
year’s regular loss fund contribution on account in the Association’s SLF, it is not required to contribute 
additionally to the SLF.  Any member whose balance falls below its targeted amount is required to 
contribute the amount needed to reach its targeted amount, or 15% of the current annual loss year 
contribution, whichever is less.  In 2012 and 2011, no funds were transferred from the SLF.  
 
In the event that a series of losses or a single loss should exceed the amount of coverage provided by the 
self-insurance fund and insurance/reinsurance and any amount of supplemental payments for which 
members are obligated, then the payment of any uncovered value loss is the obligation of the individual 
member or members against which the claims were made.  In the unlikely event that all or any of the 
insurance companies are unable to meet their obligations under the excess insurance and reinsurance 
contracts, the Association and its members would be responsible for such defaulted amounts in 
accordance with the applicable policy terms and conditions. 
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NOTE 6 – CLAIMS RESERVE 
 
As discussed in Note 1, the Association establishes a claims reserve liability which includes both reported 
and unreported insured events and estimates of future payment of losses and related claims adjustment 
expenses.  The changes in the aggregate liabilities for the Association are as follows: 
 

2012 2011

Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses - 
  Beginning of Year $ 4,242,820     4,128,314       

Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses:
  Provision for insured events of the current year 1,866,607       2,355,473       
  Decrease in provision for insured events of prior years (739,483)         (631,281)         
  Change in unallocated expense provision (42,550)         28,475             

   Total incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses 1,084,574     1,752,667       

Payments:
  Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to
   insured events of the current year 317,336          740,199          
  Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to
   insured events of prior years 1,373,496     897,962          

   Total Payments 1,690,832     1,638,161       

Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses - 
  End of Year $ 3,636,562     4,242,820       

December 31

 
 
NOTE 7 - PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 
 
Plan Description - All of the Association’s employees are covered by the Ohio Public Employees 
Retirement System (OPERS).  OPERS administers three separate pension plans.  1.) The Traditional 
Pension Plan is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan.  2.) The Member-Directed 
Plan is a defined contribution plan in which the member invests both member and employer contributions 
(employer contributions vest over five years at 20% per year).  Under the member directed plan, 
members accumulate retirement assets equal to the value of the member and vested employer 
contributions, plus any investment earnings.  3.) The Combined Plan is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer 
defined benefit pension plan. Under the combined plan, employer contributions are invested by the 
retirement system to provide a formula retirement benefit similar to, but less than, the Traditional Plan 
benefit.  Member contributions, the investment of which is self-directed by the member, accumulate 
retirement assets in a manner similar to the Member-Directed Plan. 
 
OPERS provides retirement, disability, survivor and death benefits and annual cost of living adjustments 
to members of the Traditional and Combined Plans.  Members of the Member-Directed Plan do not 
qualify for ancillary benefits.  Authority to establish and amend benefits is provided by Chapter 145 of the 
Ohio Revised Code.   
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Funding Policy - The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for member and employer 
contributions.  For 2012, member and employer contribution rates were consistent across all three plans. 
For the year ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, members contributed 10% of covered payroll.   
 
Employer contribution rates are actuarially determined. The Ohio Revised Code currently limits the 
employer contribution to a rate not to exceed 14%.  
 
A portion of the employer’s contribution to OPERS is set aside for the funding of post retirement health 
care benefits.  The Association’s contribution rate for 2012 and 2011 was 14 percent.  The portion of 
employer contributions allocated to pension benefits for members in the Traditional Plan was 10%, while 
4% went for healthcare.  The portion of employer contributions allocated to pension benefits for members 
in the Combined Plan was 7.95%, while 6.05% went for healthcare.  
 
The Association’s required contributions for pension obligations to the traditional plan for the years ended 
December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010 were $31,419, $29,150, and $29,608, respectively. Ninety-two 
percent has been contributed for 2012 and 100 percent for 2011 and 2010. 
 
NOTE 8 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
 
In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 7, the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System 
(OPERS) provides postretirement health care coverage, commonly referred to as OPEB (other 
postemployment benefits).  OPERS administers three separate pension plans, the Traditional Pension 
Plan (TP), the Member-Directed Plan (MD) and the Combined Plan (CP), all of which are described in 
Note 7. 
  
Plan Description - OPERS maintains a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit post-employment 
health care plan, which includes a medical plan, prescription drug program and Medicare Part B premium 
reimbursement, to qualifying members of both the Traditional Pension and the Combined Plans.  
Members of the Member-Directed Plan do not qualify for ancillary benefits, including post-employment 
health care coverage.  
 
In order to qualify for post-employment health care coverage, age and service retirees under the 
Traditional Pension and Combined Plans must have 10 or more years of qualifying Ohio service credit.  
Health care coverage for disability benefit recipients and qualified survivor benefit recipients is available. 
The health care coverage provided by OPERS meets the definition of OPEB as described in GASB 
Statement 45. 
  
The Ohio Revised Code permits, but does not mandate, OPERS to provide OPEB benefits to its eligible 
members and beneficiaries. Authority to establish and amend benefits is provided by Chapter 145 of the 
Ohio Revised Code.   
 
Disclosures for the health care plan are presented separately in the OPERS financial report that may be 
obtained by writing to OPERS, 277 E. Town St., Columbus, OH 43215-4642 or by calling (614) 222-5601 
or (800) 222-7377. 
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Funding Policy – The Ohio Revised Code provides the statutory authority requiring public employers to 
fund post-retirement health care coverage through their contributions to OPERS. A portion of each 
employer’s contribution to OPERS is set aside for the funding of post-retirement health care coverage.  
 
Employer contribution rates are expressed as a percentage of the covered payroll of active members. In 
2012 and 2011, the Association contributed at a rate of 14.0% of covered payroll. This is the maximum 
employer contribution permitted by the Ohio Revised Code. Active members do not make contributions to 
the OPEB Plan.  
 
OPERS’ post-employment health care plan was established under, and is administered in accordance 
with, Internal Revenue Code 401(h).  Each year, the OPERS Board of Trustees determines the portion of 
the employer contribution rate that will be set aside for funding of post-employment health care benefits.  
 
The portion of employer contributions allocated to health care for members in the Traditional Plan was 4% 
during 2012 and 2011.  The portion of employer contributions allocated to health care for members in the 
Combined Plan was 6.05% in 2012 and 2011. Effective January 1, 2013, the portion of employer 
contributions allocated to healthcare was lowered to 1% for both plans, as recommended by the OPERS 
actuary. The OPERS Board of Trustees is also authorized to establish rules for the retiree or surviving 
beneficiaries to pay a portion of the health care benefits provided. Payment amounts vary depending on 
the number of covered dependents and the coverage selected.  
 
The Association’s contributions allocated to fund post-employment health care benefits for the years 
ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010 were $12,567, $11,659, and $13,598, respectively. Ninety-
two percent has been contributed for 2012 and 100 percent for 2011 and 2010.   
 
NOTE 9 – COMMITMENTS 
 
Leases - The Association leases office space under a lease which was renewed for five years effective 
July 1, 2009.  Rental expense for the lease was $36,400 in 2012.  Rental expense for the lease was 
$36,400 in 2011.  Future minimum annual lease payments are $36,400 through June 30, 2014.  An option 
to purchase the building was also included in the agreement.  MVRMA may purchase the building for 
$320,000 at any time during the lease term. 
 
NOTE 10 – LITIGATION AND CLAIMS 
 
The Association is party to various legal proceedings, which normally occur in the course of claims 
processing operations.  Management believes that the outcome of such claims has been adequately 
accrued in the claims reserve liability, and excess will be covered by insurance carriers that provide 
excess insurance and reinsurance contracts.  Nevertheless, due to uncertainties in the settlement 
process, it is at least reasonably possible that management’s view of the outcome could change 
materially in the near term. 
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NOTE 11 – CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES: 
 
For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Program implemented the provisions of Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial 
Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. GASB 
Statement No. 62 incorporates into the GASB’s authoritative literature certain accounting and financial 
reporting guidance that is included in the following pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 
1989, which does not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements: 
 

1. Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations 
2. Accounting Principles Board Opinions 
3. Accounting Research Bulletins of the American Institute of Certified Public 

 
Accountants (AICPA) Committee on Accounting Procedures For the year ended December 31, 2012, the 
Program implemented the provisions of GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred 
Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. GASB Statement No. 63 
provides financial reporting guidance to the Program for deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources. The statement also identifies net position as the residual of all other elements 
presented in a balance sheet, amending the net asset reporting requirement be incorporating deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources into the definitions of the required components of 
the residual measure of the balance sheet and by renaming the measure to net position. The 
implementation of GASB Statement No. 63 did not require the Program to restate any prior year 
balances. 
 
For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Program implemented the provisions of GASB Statement 
No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Asset and Liabilities. GASB Statement No. 65 reclassifies as 
deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources items that were previously reported as 
assets and liabilities. The implementation of GASB Statement No. 65 did not require the Program to 
restate prior year balances. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION



2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Earned assessments and interest income:
  Earned $4,315,629 $4,388,581 $4,259,382 $4,642,131 $4,947,808 $5,163,206 $4,668,772 $4,307,934 $3,891,770 $4,117,128
  Ceded 807,647 761,789 753,793 695,576 739,537 832,277 797,977 763,651 922,317 899,070

Net $3,507,982 $3,626,792 $3,505,589 $3,946,555 $4,208,271 $4,330,929 $3,870,795 $3,544,283 $2,969,453 $3,218,058

Unallocated loss expenses $733,355 $691,571 $677,469 $668,721 $653,618 $658,624 $610,336 $567,330 $554,786 $508,063
Original estimates ultimate incurred claims
 and expenses for the policy year, including
 members' deductibles (1) 2,032,756 2,587,500 1,997,755 2,409,147 2,934,106 2,400,000 2,350,000 2,337,000 2,190,000 2,050,000

Cummulative paid claims as of - net of 
 reinsurance, including members' deductibles:
  For the policy year 664,220 2,908,228 519,228 432,941 1,079,122 414,230 550,587 619,515 333,584 322,182
    One year later 2,657,347 689,893 581,765 1,070,393 733,233 859,953 784,944 373,278 535,978
    Two years later 1,141,553 857,095 1,709,126 937,377 1,051,038 1,092,832 534,656 729,271
    Three years later 1,159,198 1,761,917 1,001,350 1,280,490 1,065,131 664,726 740,676
    Four years later 1,778,973 1,005,084 1,327,753 1,091,546 720,958 693,624
    Five years later 993,837 1,603,224 1,166,867 733,100 710,915
    Six years later 1,578,210 1,155,000 791,002 704,094
    Seven years later 1,471,236 791,002 704,094
    Eight years later 791,002 704,094
    Nine years later 704,094

Re-estimated utlimate incurred claims and
 expenses, including members' deductibles:
  For the policy year 2,032,756 2,587,500 1,997,755 2,409,147 2,934,106 2,400,000 2,350,000 2,337,000 2,190,000 2,050,000
    One year later 2,136,224 1,742,370 1,764,438 2,166,259 2,198,000 2,160,000 1,980,000 1,785,000 1,665,711
    Two years later 1,394,990 1,221,597 1,967,931 1,152,076 1,297,210 1,415,470 701,621 908,463
    Three years later 1,288,589 1,948,570 1,075,548 1,433,434 1,299,470 793,621 876,463
    Four years later 1,766,766 1,068,624 1,412,424 1,186,428 854,621 790,463
    Five years later 1,011,355 1,683,451 1,231,089 790,414 774,333
    Six years later 1,642,641 1,182,482 816,424 730,530
    Seven years later 1,471,236 810,952 704,095
    Eight years later 791,002 704,095
    Nine years later 704,095

Increase (decrease) in estimate incurred claims
 and expenses from original estimate 2,032,756 (451,276) (602,765) (1,120,558) (1,167,340) (1,388,645) (707,359) (865,764) (1,398,998) (1,345,905)

(1) Ceded losses are not expected to be significant.

MIAMI VALLEY RISK MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION, INC.
Comparative Schedule of Claim Development, Earned Assessments and Unallocated Expenses

For The Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009, 2008, 2007, 2006, 2005, 2004 and 2003
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General Automobile Property
Liability Liability Liability Total

Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses - 
  Beginning of Year $ 2,345,831    790,370       1,106,619      4,242,820    

Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses:
  Provision for insured events of the current year 1,094,032      210,764         561,811         1,866,607      
  Decrease in provision for insured events of prior years (537,840)      (185,468)      (58,725)          (782,033)      

   Total incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses 556,192       25,296         503,086         1,084,574    

Payments:
  Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to
   insured events of the current year 30,592           16,345           270,400         317,337         
  Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to
   insured events of prior years 1,257,987    44,642         70,866           1,373,495    

   Total Payments 1,288,579    60,987         341,266         1,690,832    

Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses - 
  End of Year $ 1,613,444    754,679       1,268,439      3,636,562    

MIAMI VALLEY RISK MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION, INC.
Reconciliation of Claim Liabilities by Type of Contract

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012
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General Automobile Property
Liability Liability Liability Total

Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses - 
  Beginning of Year $ 2,131,300    937,223       1,059,791      4,128,314    

Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses:
  Provision for insured events of the current year 1,236,373      266,885         852,215         2,355,473      
  Decrease in provision for insured events of prior years (277,894)      (239,417)      (85,495)          (602,806)      

   Total incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses 958,479       27,468          766,720         1,752,667    

Payments:
  Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to
   insured events of the current year 46,590            52,511            641,098         740,199         
  Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to
   insured events of prior years 697,358       121,810       78,794            897,962       

   Total Payments 743,948       174,321       719,892         1,638,161    

Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses - 
  End of Year $ 2,345,831    790,370       1,106,619      4,242,820    

MIAMI VALLEY RISK MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION, INC
Reconciliation of Claim Liabilities by Type of Contract

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011
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Miami Valley Risk Management Association 
Statistical Section 
December 31, 2012 
 
 
This section of Miami Valley Risk Management's comprehensive annual financial report provides 
users with additional historical perspective, context and detail to assist in using the information in 
the financial statements, notes to financial statements and required supplementary information to 
understand and assess the Association's overall financial health. 
 
Contents          Page 
Financial Trends Information (Schedules 1, 2 & 3)            156 – 158    
 These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand 
 and assess how the Association's financial position has changed over time. 
Revenue Capacity Information (Schedule 4)      159 
 This schedule contains information to help the reader understand the 
 sources of the Association's revenues. 
Demographic and Economic Information (Schedules 5-26)           160 – 182  
 These schedules contain information related to the demographics 
 of the region as well as the Association's members' exposures,  
 which determine each member's annual contribution.  These 
 schedules are intended to assist the reader in understanding the 
 changing environment of the Association and to provide comparisons 
 among its members. 
Operating Information (Schedule 27)       183 
 This schedule contains information about the Association's operations 
 and resources to help the reader understand how the information in the 
 financial report relates to the services the Association provides 
 and the activities it performs. 
 
Note:  The Association has no debt, and therefore, provides no schedules related to debt. 
 
Sources:  Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the 
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year.  The Association implemented 
GASB Statement 34 effective January 1, 2004; however, every attempt was made to provide ten 
years of information in each schedule. 



Miami Valley Risk Management Association
Net Position by Component Schedule 1

Last Ten Years

            Year Ended December 31

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Invested in capital assets 21,408$          24,215$          19,278$          15,420$          12,060$          11,136$           10,400$           10,299$           9,621$             19,641$           

Unrestricted 2,426,163       2,421,701       4,456,567       7,188,167       9,204,897       10,869,421      11,774,165      11,504,656      12,359,793      12,783,463      

Total Net Position 2,447,571$     2,445,916$     4,475,845$    7,203,587$    9,216,957$    10,880,557$   11,784,565$   11,514,955$   12,369,414$   12,803,104$   

Note:  Accounting standards require that net position be reported in three components in the financial statements: invested in capital assets net of related debt, 
restricted and unrestricted.  The Association does not have any assets "restricted" by outside parties or by law through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation.  The "unrestricted" assets are assets that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or "invested in capital assets net of related debt." 

Source: Audited Financial Statements for the years 2003-2012
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Miami Valley Risk Management Association Schedule 2
Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Years

            Year Ended December 31

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

EXPENSES:
Claim expenses
  Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses 1,736,813$  1,726,504$  947,024$     532,687$     1,658,674$  1,876,350$    2,004,526$    1,195,748$    2,080,913$     1,182,409$     
  Reinsurance/insurance premiums 899,070       922,317       763,651       797,977       832,277       739,537         695,576         753,793         761,789         807,647          
  Claims administration -              -              -              -              -              -                -                -                -                 -                  
  Closed loss year refunds 1,054,225    689,818       -              -              -              14,680           369,300         1,901,982      -                 1,276,154       

Total claim expense 3,690,108    3,338,639    1,710,675    1,330,664    2,490,951    2,630,567      3,069,402      3,851,523      2,842,702       3,266,210       

Total general and administrative expenses 508,063       554,786       567,330       610,366       658,624       653,618         668,721         677,469         691,571         733,355          

Total operating expenses 4,198,171    3,893,425    2,278,005    1,941,030    3,149,575    3,284,185      3,738,123      4,528,992      3,534,273       3,999,565       

REVENUES:
Operating revenues
  Members' contributions 3,871,053    3,571,708    3,878,229    3,970,351    4,074,713    4,001,211      3,837,608      3,947,859      3,572,290       3,965,398       
  Claims deductibles 230,775       173,145       214,846       194,154       221,280       249,892         225,728         176,920         229,751         169,168          
  Other 15,300         8,511           4,821           10,682         31,063         1,654             131,146         18,700           481,897         36,482            

Total operating revenues 4,117,128    3,753,364    4,097,896    4,175,187    4,327,056    4,252,757      4,194,482      4,143,479      4,283,938       4,171,048       

Non-operating revenues
  Loss on disposal of capital assets -              -              -              -              (261)            (23)                -                -                (151)               (580)                
  Interest income 99,018         138,406       210,038       493,585       574,338       564,578         225,581         41,066           104,281         75,136            
  Unrealized gain on investment -              -              -              -              261,812       130,473         222,068         74,837           664                187,651          
Total non-operating revenues 99,018         138,406       210,038       493,585       835,889       695,028         447,649         115,903         104,794         262,207          

Total revenues 4,216,146    3,891,770    4,307,934    4,668,772    5,162,945    4,947,785      4,642,131      4,259,382      4,388,732       4,433,255       

CHANGES IN NET POSITION:
Increase (decrease) in net position 17,975         (1,655)         2,029,929    2,727,742    2,013,370    1,663,600      904,008         (269,610)        854,459         433,690          

Net position beginning of year 2,429,596    2,447,571    2,445,916    4,475,845    7,203,587    9,216,957      10,880,557    11,784,565    11,514,955     12,369,414     

Net position end of year 2,447,571$  2,445,916$  4,475,845$  7,203,587$  9,216,957$  10,880,557$  11,784,565$  11,514,955$  12,369,414$   12,803,104$   

Source: Audited Financial Statements for the years 2003-2012
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Miami Valley Risk Management Association Schedule 3
Loss Development Report - Comparison of Dollar Losses and Claims Counts by Loss Year
Last Ten Years

Loss Experience After: 12 Months 24 Months 36 Months 48 Months 60 Months 72 Months 84 Months 96 Months 108 Months 120 Months

Loss Year/Members' 
Loss Fund Contribution                                            Total amount incurred followed by number of claims/open claims

Balance in Loss 
Fund 12/31/12

Paid to Date 
12/31/12

Loss Year - 14
12/31/01-12/31/02
17 Member Cities

 $669,082
(333/43) 

 $861,358
(384/11) 

 $1,181,939
(390/13) 

 $1,329,548
(393/10) 

 $1,565,732
(393/3) 

 $1,615,732
(393/3) 

 $1,676,919
(394/1) 

 $2,290,419
(394/1) 

 $2,310,419
(394/1) 

 $2103572
(394/0) 

 LY 14 = Closed

Loss Year - 15
12/31/02-12/31/03
17 Member Cities

 $412,346
(405/45) 

 $535,979
(443/15) 

 $729,271
(446/9) 

 $740,676
(447/7) 

 $693,624
(447/2) 

 $710,915
(450/3) 

 $704,094
(450/0) 

 $704,094
(450/0) 

 $704,094
(450/0) 

 $704,094
(450/0) 

 LY 15 = Closed

Loss Year - 16
12/31/03-12/31/04
20 Member Cities

 $333,584
(314/43) 

 $373,278
(368/9) 

 $534,656
(378/14) 

 $664,726
(382/6) 

 $720,958
(383/6) 

 $733,100
(383/1) 

 $791,002
(383/0) 

 $791,002
(383/0) 

 $791,002
(383/0) 

 $791,002
(383/0) 

 LY 16 = Closed

Loss Year - 17
12/31/04-12/31/05
20 Member Cities

 $619,515
(345/49) 

 $784,933
(389/14) 

 $1,092,832
(394/14) 

 $1,065,131
(395/11) 

 $1,091,546
(395/5) 

 $1,166,867
(395/5) 

 $1,155,000
(395/2) 

 $1,471,236
(395/0) 

 LY 17 = Closed

Loss Year - 18
12/31/05-12/31/06
20 Member Cities

 $550,587
(318/49) 

 $859,953
(345/11) 

 $1,051,038
(348/7) 

 $1,280,490
(351/6) 

 $1,327,753
(351/4) 

 $1,603,224
(353/4) 

 $1,578,210
(353/1) 

 LY 18 = 
1,371,718 

 $          1,503,210 

Loss Year - 19
12/31/06-12/31/07
20 Member Cities

 $414,230
(338/49) 

 $733,273
(402/16) 

 $937,377
(404/5) 

 $1,001,350
(404/5) 

 $1,005,084
(404/2) 

 $993,837
(404/0) 

 LY 19 = 
2,003,781 

 $             993,837 

Loss Year - 20
12/31/07-12/31/08
20 Member Cities

 $1,079,122
(396/66) 

 $1,070,393
(423/8) 

 $1,709,126
(427/9) 

 $1,761,917
(429/7) 

 $1,778,973
(429/2) 

 LY 20 = 
1,248,439 

 $          1,767,054 

Loss Year - 21
12/31/08-12/31/09
20 Member Cities

 $432,941
(320/36) 

 $581,765
(343/6) 

 $857,095
(347/8) 

 $1,159,198
(347/5) 

 LY 21 = 
1,642,145 

 $          1,025,641 

Loss Year - 22
12/31/09-12/31/10
20 Member Cities

 $519,228
(331/40) 

 $689,893
(363/7) 

 $1,141,553
(366/6) 

 LY 22 = 
1,784,790 

 $             886,485 

Loss Year - 23
12/31/10-12/31/11
20 Member Cities

 $2,908,228
(416/51) 

 $2,657,347
(439/4) 

 LY 23 = 
1,637,511 

 $          2,180,356 

Loss Year - 24
12/31/11-12/31/12
20 Member Cities

 $664,220
(337/57) 

 LY 24 = 
2,076,813 

 $             433,407 

Source: Association's internal records
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Miami Valley Risk Management Association           Schedule 4
Annual Contributions by Member and Year
Last Ten Years

     Year Ended December 31

Member 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Beavercreek $288,060 $193,318 $189,814 $197,790 $192,914 $210,804 $221,747 $221,919 $235,484 $247,239

Bellbrook $0 $64,138 $76,412 $74,986 $55,108 $54,062 $46,591 $42,485 $43,061 $54,946

Blue Ash $253,117 $220,518 $213,787 $251,714 $324,304 $286,612 $276,742 $262,775 $227,704 $240,172

Centerville $0 $58,137 $220,037 $202,847 $181,220 $186,677 $219,474 $239,595 $247,794 $192,074

Englewood $0 $105,482 $113,470 $120,851 $139,682 $162,794 $171,505 $231,831 $205,979 $145,508

Indian Hill $105,033 $85,348 $106,627 $146,420 $156,700 $162,540 $103,124 $84,708 $98,718 $116,972

Kettering $660,057 $581,206 $472,724 $443,180 $476,047 $471,654 $463,568 $513,606 $480,720 $488,029

Madeira $70,310 $56,845 $80,835 $126,795 $113,523 $79,197 $34,126 $47,158 $47,529 $50,156

Mason $415,599 $305,714 $318,858 $369,765 $267,167 $266,403 $260,169 $284,894 $314,081 $316,748

Miamisburg $245,632 $212,446 $273,532 $296,582 $322,594 $284,384 $218,096 $188,032 $174,104 $204,148

Montgomery $118,156 $111,907 $104,297 $119,815 $133,538 $90,392 $83,948 $105,152 $116,047 $123,881

NAWA* $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,506 $8,283 $25,089 $23,071 $24,422 $26,426

Piqua $200,580 $268,058 $246,131 $257,870 $305,486 $280,378 $266,853 $315,950 $276,213 $321,935

Sidney $282,321 $253,006 $262,913 $256,588 $279,257 $257,875 $242,884 $262,532 $276,769 $274,799

Springdale $183,784 $142,593 $143,579 $139,075 $153,388 $157,826 $134,413 $144,575 $141,082 $133,556

Tipp City $100,320 $84,447 $91,621 $100,761 $134,170 $139,507 $110,289 $114,577 $94,419 $113,611

Troy $268,201 $234,827 $252,453 $274,884 $307,797 $267,486 $231,814 $233,605 $248,487 $253,633

Vandalia $199,418 $160,664 $165,055 $184,599 $167,535 $205,064 $179,998 $182,625 $185,520 $210,005

West Carrollton $139,249 $109,023 $103,601 $101,317 $110,773 $118,681 $127,426 $117,440 $99,912 $87,456

Wilmington $233,934 $199,389 $159,771 $179,191 $173,597 $209,851 $254,970 $303,332 $265,297 $229,142

Wyoming $134,287 $112,896 $94,460 $100,069 $73,405 $97,240 $98,285 $107,990 $144,226 $144,962

$3,898,058 $3,559,962 $3,689,977 $3,945,099 $4,074,711 $3,997,710 $3,771,111 $4,027,852 $3,947,568 $3,975,398

Note: Bellbrook, Centerville and Englewood joined in 2004.  

*Beginning in 2007, NAWA, a joint venture water authority shared by Tipp City and Vandalia, was included as a separate entity when premiums were calculated f
each member of the pool.  This calculation allowed disclosure of NAWA's premium separate from the cities of Tipp City and Vandali

Source: Association's internal records
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Miami Valley Risk Management Association    

Demographic Statistics
December 31, 2012 Schedule 5

MVRMA is a consortium of municipalities located in southwest Ohio.  Core cities for the region are 
Dayton and Cincinnati.  Information for the Dayton MSA and the Cincinnati MSA
provides an indication of the demographic and economic condition of the region.

DAYTON MSA 2012 2011 2010
Population: 800,972 845,388 842,131
Total Personal Income: * $31,625,725,000 $30,091,738,000
Per Capita Personal Income: * $37,410 $35,733
Median Household Income: * $44,141 $43,832
Unemployment Rate: 7.5% 9.4% 10.8%
Ten Largest Employers (employee count and %): Count % Count % Count % 

Wright Patterson Air Force Base 27,400 7.28% Wright Patterson Air Force Base 27,400 7.33% Wright Patterson Air Force Base 25,000 6.70%
Premier Health Partners 14,548 3.87% Premier Health Partners 14,135 3.78% Premier Health Partners 14,070 3.77%
Kettering Health Network 5,496 1.46% Kettering Health Network 5,029 1.34% Kettering Health Network 5,452 1.46%
Kroger Co. 4,950 1.32% Montgomery County 4,559 1.22% Kroger Co. 4,800 1.29%
Montgomery County 4,363 1.16% Kroger Co. 4,100 1.10% Montgomery County 4,595 1.23%
LexisNexis 3,400 0.90% LexisNexis 3,100 0.83% LexisNexis 3,000 0.80%
Sinclair Community College 2,726 0.72% Sinclair Community College 2,726 0.73% Sinclair Community College 2,720 0.73%
Dayton City Schools 2,574 0.68% Dayton Public Schools 2,574 0.69% Honda of America Manufacturing 2,710 0.73%
AK Steel Holding Corp. 2,400 0.64% Wright State University 2,417 0.65% Dayton Public Schools 2,574 0.69%
Honda of America Manufacturing 2,400 0.64% AK Steel Holding Corp. 2,400 0.64% AK Steel Corp. 2,400 0.64%

Honda of America Manufacturing 2,400 0.64%
CINCINNATI MSA

Population: 2,128,603 2,138,038 2,132,415
Total Personal Income: * $87,484,877,000 $83,387,840,000
Per Capita Personal Income: * $40,918 $39,105
Median Household Income: * $52,373 $51,572
Unemployment Rate: 7.1% 8.8% 9.7%
Ten Largest Employers (employee count and %): Count % Count % Count %

Kroger Co. 20,646 2.01% Kroger Co. 19,000 1.89% Kroger Co. 17,000 1.67%
University of Cincinnati 15,329 1.49% University of Cincinnati 15,374 1.53% University of Cincinnati 15,162 1.49%
Cincinnati Children's Hospital 12,564 1.22% Procter & Gamble Co. 12,500 1.24% Procter & Gamble 14,000 1.37%
Procter & Gamble Co. 12,000 1.17% Cincinnati Children's Hospital 12,332 1.23% Cincinnati Children's Hospital 12,057 1.18%
TriHealth Inc. 10,400 1.01% TriHealth Inc. 10,197 1.01% TriHealth Inc. 9,898 0.97%
Catholic Health Partners/Mercy Health 8,940 0.87% Mercy Health 8,817 0.88% Mercy Health Partners 8,550 0.84%
UC Health 8,670 0.85% Archdiocese of Cincinnati 7,500 0.75% Archdiocese of Cincinnati 8,000 0.79%
GE Aviation 7,500 0.73% GE Aviation 7,400 0.74% GE Aviation 7,300 0.72%
St. Elizabeth Healthcare 7,251 0.71% St. Elizabeth Healthcare 7,300 0.73% Walmart Stores 6,932 0.68%
Fifth Third Bancorp 7,180 0.70% Fifth Third Bankcorp 7,063 0.70% St. Elizabeth Healthcare 6,839 0.67%

* This information will not be available until September 2013
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Miami Valley Risk Management Association
Demographic Statistics
December 31, 2012

DAYTON MSA 2009 2008 2007
Population: 841,319 842,897 844,413
Total Personal Income: $29,225,799,000 $30,095,445,000 $29,270,423,000
Per Capita Personal Income: $34,738 $35,705 $34,664
Median Household Income: $45,157 $48,164 $46,493
Unemployment Rate: 11.1% 7.0% 5.9%
Ten Largest Employers (employee count and %): Count % Count % Count % 

Wright Patterson Air Force Base 25,000 6.62% Wright Patterson Air Force Base 24,000 6.08% Wright Patterson Air Force Base 24,000 5.98%
Premier Health Partners 14,334 3.80% Premier Health Partners 11,300 2.86% Premier Health Partners 10,023 2.50%
Kettering Health Network 5,630 1.49% Kettering Health Network 5,425 1.37% Delphi Corp. 5,300 1.32%
Montgomery County 4,635 1.23% Montgomery County 4,497 1.14% Kettering Health Network 5,055 1.26%
Honda of America Manufacturing 3,000 0.79% Community Mercy Health Partners 3,075 0.78% Montgomery County 4,967 1.24%
Kroger Co. 3,000 0.79% Kroger Co. 3,000 0.76% Kroger Co. 3,000 0.75%
LexisNexis 3,000 0.79% LexisNexis 3,000 0.76% LexisNexis 3,000 0.75%
Dayton Public Schools 2,674 0.71% Honda of America Manufacturing 2,750 0.70% National City 2,900 0.72%
Sinclair Community College 2,650 0.70% GM Corp. Moraine Assembly Plant 2,500 0.63% Dayton Public Schools 2,899 0.72%
Wright State University 2,279 0.60% Dayton Public Schools 2,453 0.62% Honda of America Manufacturing 2,800 0.70%

CINCINNATI MSA
Population: 2,123,378 2,110,942 2,099,851
Total Personal Income: $81,392,930,000 $84,831,677,000 $81,922,785,000
Per Capita Personal Income: $38,332 $40,187 $39,014
Median Household Income: $51,832 $54,059 $52,023
Unemployment Rate: 9.3% 5.8% 5%
Ten Largest Employers (employee count and %): Count % Count % Count %

Kroger Co. 17,000 1.65% Kroger Co. 15,600 1.47% University of Cincinnati 15,862 1.49%
University of Cincinnati 15,340 1.49% University of Cincinnati 15,542 1.46% Kroger Co. 15,600 1.47%
Procter & Gamble 13,000 1.27% Proctor & Gamble  12,900 1.21% Health Alliance 14,785 1.39%
Cincinnati Children's Hospital 11,385 1.11% Children's Hospital 10,347 0.97% Procter & Gamble 12,315 1.16%
Health Alliance of Greater Cincinnati 10,000 0.97% Tri-Health 9,850 0.93% Children's Hospital 9,464 0.89%
TriHealth 9,875 0.96% Health Alliance 9,475 0.89% TriHealth 9,400 0.88%
Archdiocese of Cincinnati 8,000 0.78% Wal-Mart Stores 7,787 0.73% Fifth Third Bank 7,645 0.72%
Walmart Stores 7,375 0.72% Fifth Third Bank 7,633 0.72% Walmart Stores 7,500 0.70%
Mercy Health Partners SW Ohio 7,316 0.71% Archdiocese of Cincinnati 7,500 0.70% GE Aviation 7,400 0.70%
Fifth Third Bancorp 7,219 0.70% GE Aviation 7,400 0.69% Mercy Health Partners 6,948 0.65%

Note:  This report was added to the CAFR in 2007.  Information for previous years was not available.
Sources: US Census Bureau, Bureau of Economic Analysis - Personal Income Summary, Ohio Dept. of Jobs and Family Services
The Cincinnati Business Courier and The Dayton Business Journal
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Miami Valley Risk Management Association
Risk Exposure Worksheet: MVRMA (Summary) Schedule 6

Last Ten Years

            Risk Exposure:
(Non-Police) Pool

Average Full-Time Full-Time Titled PP/RP Net Operating Contribution
Membership Year Annual Losses Population Employees Sworn Police Vehicles Values Expenditures Factors

2003 $595,242 305,832 1,891 565 1,593 $505,138,727 $291,347,311 100.00%

2004 $808,325 348,100 2,080 631 1,808 $587,115,995 $321,060,280 100.00%

2005 $698,372 348,100 2,069 631 1,828 $744,146,242 $336,661,822 100.00%

2006 $773,257 348,100 2,078 636 1,812 $829,733,661 $350,433,689 100.00%

2007 $722,898 348,100 2,074 638 1,824 $890,798,964 $358,045,532 100.00%

2008 $657,329 348,100 2,070 649 1,891 $847,418,767 $385,918,674 100.00%

2009 $708,014 348,100 2,032 645 1,933 $914,069,611 $396,081,790 100.00%

2010 $847,609 348,100 2,020 642 1,926 $959,970,282 $396,536,755 100.00%

2011 $768,322 348,100 1,954 632 1,920 $1,018,755,061 $412,734,256 100.00%

2012 $696,716 370,590 1,888 612 1,939 $1,047,889,231 $407,102,311 100.00%

Note:  In 2007, NAWA, a joint venture water authority shared by the cities of Tipp City and Vandalia, was included as a separate entity when contribution 
factors were calculated for each member of the pool.  Calculating a separate contribution factor for NAWA was simply a means of separating its premium  
from the cities of Tipp City and Vandalia.  The 2007-2010 totals above include the following information submitted for NAWA:

NAWA - 2007 $0 0 3 0 0 $11,598,837 $84,130 0.16%
NAWA - 2008 $0 0 3 0 1 $11,946,350 $537,839 0.19%
NAWA - 2009 $8,750 0 3 0 1 $12,300,907 $819,802 0.61%
NAWA - 2010 $8,750 0 3 0 1 $12,601,281 $862,624 0.54%
NAWA - 2011 $8,750 0 4 0 1 $12,384,113 $1,060,718 0.57%
NAWA - 2012 $8,750 0 4 0 1 $13,103,413 $897,199 0.61%

Source: Association's internal records
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Miami Valley Risk Management Association
Risk Exposure Worksheet: City of Beavercreek Schedule 7

Last Ten Years
 

            Risk Exposure:
(Non-Police) Pool

Average Full-Time Full-Time Titled PP/RP Net Operating Contribution
Membership Year Annual Losses Population Employees Sworn Police Vehicles Values Expenditures Factors

2003 $53,827 37,984 80 52 90 $10,179,714 $15,559,882 7.34%

2004 $35,642 37,984 80 48 94 $12,141,559 $14,487,068 5.51%

2005 $26,108 37,984 81 48 94 $23,911,213 $16,855,497 5.22%

2006 $30,149 37,984 89 48 101 $25,309,795 $16,797,793 5.32%

2007 $21,107 37,984 89 47 102 $26,809,530 $17,420,563 4.98%

2008 $27,841 37,984 90 46 109 $26,334,539 $19,135,485 5.43%

2009 $44,102 37,984 84 48 104 $26,337,822 $16,759,148 5.96%

2010 $45,982 37,984 82 46 96 $26,848,883 $18,056,350 5.64%

2011 $50,220 37,984 88 46 96 $26,944,472 $18,189,385 6.04%

2012 $45,434 45,193 88 46 95 $28,306,520 $18,979,561 6.24%

Source: Association's internal records
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Miami Valley Risk Management Association
Risk Exposure Worksheet: City of Bellbrook (New Member January 2004) Schedule 8

Last Ten Years

            Risk Exposure:
(Non-Police) Pool

Average Full-Time Full-Time Titled PP/RP Net Operating Contribution
Membership Year Annual Losses Population Employees Sworn Police Vehicles Values Expenditures Factors

2003 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

2004 $21,652 7,009 25 12 33 $9,478,268 $3,185,555 1.92%

2005 $18,504 7,009 26 12 32 $10,479,866 $3,581,391 1.93%

2006 $18,949 7,009 25 12 32 $11,065,068 $3,698,659 1.85%

2007 $5,155 7,009 25 14 33 $12,076,724 $3,815,994 1.31%

2008 $4,514 7,009 26 12 35 $11,366,041 $4,172,942 1.27%

2009 $3,425 7,009 25 12 33 $11,359,892 $4,086,026 1.17%

2010 $1,517 7,009 26 12 33 $11,598,240 $4,316,695 1.08%

2011 $1,380 7,009 26 12 34 $13,620,523 $4,383,111 1.11%

2012 $5,533 6,943 26 12 34 $13,671,866 $5,016,924 1.32%

Source: Association's internal records
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Miami Valley Risk Management Association
Risk Exposure Worksheet: City of Blue Ash Schedule 9

Last Ten Years

            Risk Exposure:
(Non-Police) Pool

Average Full-Time Full-Time Titled PP/RP Net Operating Contribution
Membership Year Annual Losses Population Employees Sworn Police Vehicles Values Expenditures Factors

2003 $42,379 12,513 105 41 102 $34,912,609 $18,775,957 6.46%

2004 $52,123 12,513 107 42 103 $43,254,838 $19,503,593 6.24%

2005 $41,879 12,513 110 41 108 $55,002,418 $21,055,430 5.88%

2006 $55,936 12,513 109 37 107 $58,351,432 $22,146,450 6.18%

2007 $83,352 12,513 108 38 108 $61,585,076 $22,163,631 7.60%

2008 $70,585 12,513 110 38 108 $60,555,427 $23,993,866 7.34%

2009 $77,204 12,513 110 38 109 $70,756,876 $24,211,958 7.46%

2010 $71,848 12,513 106 37 115 $76,921,838 $24,173,860 6.68%

2011 $45,746 12,513 104 37 108 $87,598,219 $24,786,830 5.87%

2012 $45,820 12,114 96 35 108 $89,042,698 $27,369,113 6.07%

Source: Association's internal records
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Miami Valley Risk Management Association
Risk Exposure Worksheet: City of Centerville (New Member 2004) Schedule 10

Last Ten Fiscal Years

            Risk Exposure:
(Non-Police) Pool

Average Full-Time Full-Time Titled PP/RP Net Operating Contribution
Membership Year Annual Losses Population Employees Sworn Police Vehicles Values Expenditures Factors

2003 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

2004 $52,728 23,024 100 42 94 $23,007,262 $15,614,286 2.04%

2005 $41,107 23,024 100 42 97 $27,211,253 $16,427,894 5.51%

2006 $35,684 23,024 96 42 93 $26,330,174 $17,580,120 5.00%

2007 $19,523 23,024 92 42 93 $27,454,829 $16,510,031 4.28%

2008 $23,317 23,024 84 39 86 $27,436,846 $16,927,984 4.39%

2009 $45,062 23,024 79 41 90 $29,783,636 $17,647,206 5.37%

2010 $59,427 23,024 80 43 88 $36,455,615 $13,498,803 5.56%

2011 $58,028 23,024 78 42 88 $34,958,605 $17,809,067 5.80%

2012 $32,719 23,999 78 41 92 $34,472,337 $17,525,689 4.86%

Source: Association's internal records
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Miami Valley Risk Management Association
Risk Exposure Worksheet: City of Englewood (New Member 2004) Schedule 11

Last Ten Fiscal Years

            Risk Exposure:
(Non-Police) Pool

Average Full-Time Full-Time Titled PP/RP Net Operating Contribution
Membership Year Annual Losses Population Employees Sworn Police Vehicles Values Expenditures Factors

2003 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

2004 $27,033 12,235 48 18 62 $17,224,870 $8,688,707 3.03%

2005 $19,088 12,235 48 19 60 $19,517,102 $9,604,002 2.87%

2006 $21,704 12,235 46 20 64 $24,312,190 $10,361,080 2.97%

2007 $27,602 12,235 50 16 64 $25,487,087 $11,653,011 3.28%

2008 $35,942 12,235 45 20 64 $24,937,732 $10,986,906 3.82%

2009 $46,536 12,235 45 20 68 $28,179,154 $10,664,007 4.20%

2010 $85,660 12,235 44 20 66 $29,955,893 $10,779,062 5.38%

2011 $65,485 12,235 45 20 66 $29,697,266 $11,102,203 4.84%

2012 $35,031 13,465 46 20 63 $30,371,950 $10,553,408 3.68%

Source: Association's internal records
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Miami Valley Risk Management Association
Risk Exposure Worksheet: City of The Village of Indian Hill Schedule 12

Last Ten Years

            Risk Exposure:
(Non-Police) Pool

Average Full-Time Full-Time Titled PP/RP Net Operating Contribution
Membership Year Annual Losses Population Employees Sworn Police Vehicles Values Expenditures Factors

2003 $14,437 5,907 54 19 59 $9,452,214 $8,766,549 2.67%

2004 $14,992 5,907 54 20 59 $10,536,868 $9,115,624 2.42%

2005 $25,781 5,907 58 20 59 $13,497,847 $8,547,336 2.93%

2006 $43,592 5,907 60 20 62 $14,814,892 $8,352,458 3.58%

2007 $41,465 5,907 59 20 67 $18,191,591 $9,168,888 3.68%

2008 $40,443 5,907 60 20 71 $17,223,591 $9,484,132 3.82%

2009 $22,065 5,907 63 20 67 $17,217,305 $10,520,453 2.81%

2010 $11,308 5,907 59 19 65 $23,536,511 $7,930,463 2.16%

2011 $17,119 5,907 59 20 58 $24,018,096 $11,520,812 2.53%

2012 $24,043 5,785 56 19 58 $24,510,843 $13,235,566 2.95%

Source: Association's internal records
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Miami Valley Risk Management Association
Risk Exposure Worksheet: City of Kettering Schedule 13

Last Ten Years

            Risk Exposure:
(Non-Police) Pool

Average Full-Time Full-Time Titled PP/RP Net Operating Contribution
Membership Year Annual Losses Population Employees Sworn Police Vehicles Values Expenditures Factors

2003 $106,216 57,502 313 83 258 $82,646,639 $43,290,475 16.80%

2004 $142,563 57,502 312 83 267 $86,690,728 $46,922,099 16.44%

2005 $68,731 57,502 313 80 253 $113,878,770 $48,550,683 13.05%

2006 $51,461 57,502 307 81 249 $126,037,978 $51,363,719 11.95%

2007 $57,704 57,502 305 81 235 $131,107,666 $49,602,044 12.15%

2008 $55,849 57,502 296 83 254 $114,335,569 $52,414,872 12.18%

2009 $59,798 57,502 303 82 267 $142,973,189 $53,256,573 12.49%

2010 $81,829 57,502 312 83 260 $146,813,009 $58,321,082 13.04%

2011 $62,797 57,502 298 81 254 $157,357,696 $55,958,354 12.37%

2012 $56,891 56,163 285 81 261 $165,013,544 $56,061,531 12.33%

Source: Association's internal records
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Miami Valley Risk Management Association
Risk Exposure Worksheet: City of Madeira Schedule 14

Last Ten Years

            Risk Exposure:
(Non-Police) Pool

Average Full-Time Full-Time Titled PP/RP Net Operating Contribution
Membership Year Annual Losses Population Employees Sworn Police Vehicles Values Expenditures Factors

2003 $15,182 8,923 12 12 18 $3,548,245 $2,616,570 1.79%

2004 $17,011 8,923 12 12 18 $3,743,094 $2,566,971 1.61%

2005 $28,921 8,923 12 12 19 $4,618,305 $2,695,835 2.21%

2006 $53,175 8,923 11 12 17 $4,839,239 $2,467,720 3.09%

2007 $40,457 8,923 12 12 18 $4,938,711 $2,767,967 2.68%

2008 $24,383 8,923 11 13 18 $4,663,035 $2,791,986 2.05%

2009 $2,627 8,923 11 13 18 $4,679,431 $3,405,316 0.95%

2010 $9,568 8,923 12 12 18 $4,763,287 $3,641,039 1.20%

2011 $9,568 8,923 12 13 20 $4,750,274 $2,090,829 1.22%

2012 $9,953 8,726 12 11 19 $4,882,962 $3,587,538 1.27%

Source: Association's internal records
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Miami Valley Risk Management Association
Risk Exposure Worksheet: City of Mason Schedule 15

Last Ten Years

            Risk Exposure:
(Non-Police) Pool

Average Full-Time Full-Time Titled PP/RP Net Operating Contribution
Membership Year Annual Losses Population Employees Sworn Police Vehicles Values Expenditures Factors

2003 $100,436 22,016 131 34 94 $44,606,095 $27,683,838 10.56%

2004 $97,309 22,016 129 36 99 $46,427,659 $22,425,410 8.69%

2005 $90,009 22,016 138 37 107 $58,679,007 $25,717,235 8.77%

2006 $97,445 22,016 146 36 99 $90,289,005 $30,025,113 9.08%

2007 $37,341 22,016 150 42 88 $84,689,213 $26,686,653 6.38%

2008 $36,280 22,016 158 41 114 $85,357,251 $28,887,906 6.71%

2009 $44,785 22,016 142 43 120 $96,742,995 $28,900,206 7.00%

2010 $59,237 22,016 149 43 128 $99,265,213 $26,767,913 7.23%

2011 $64,269 22,016 148 43 131 $116,229,359 $33,361,055 8.01%

2012 $55,606 30,712 144 38 126 $118,786,784 $33,039,076 8.00%

Source: Association's internal records
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Miami Valley Risk Management Association
Risk Exposure Worksheet: City of Miamisburg Schedule 16

Last Ten Years

            Risk Exposure:
(Non-Police) Pool

Average Full-Time Full-Time Titled PP/RP Net Operating Contribution
Membership Year Annual Losses Population Employees Sworn Police Vehicles Values Expenditures Factors

2003 $31,406 19,489 151 39 119 $29,314,539 $17,350,916 6.27%

2004 $41,323 19,489 151 39 114 $33,376,409 $18,009,716 6.01%

2005 $70,697 19,489 150 41 120 $41,624,677 $18,966,418 7.50%

2006 $89,408 19,489 143 41 118 $41,786,631 $19,977,161 7.87%

2007 $89,397 19,489 144 39 120 $43,682,241 $20,428,324 8.10%

2008 $67,249 19,489 147 41 120 $41,904,971 $20,304,421 7.36%

2009 $41,982 19,489 144 41 124 $42,746,457 $21,082,751 5.92%

2010 $22,345 19,489 138 40 122 $44,344,585 $21,937,415 4.78%

2011 $14,910 19,489 135 36 121 $43,557,340 $23,674,531 4.48%

2012 $27,876 20,181 127 37 121 $43,926,521 $23,270,400 5.15%

Source: Association's internal records
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Miami Valley Risk Management Association
Risk Exposure Worksheet: City of Montgomery Schedule 17

Last Ten Years

            Risk Exposure:
(Non-Police) Pool

Average Full-Time Full-Time Titled PP/RP Net Operating Contribution
Membership Year Annual Losses Population Employees Sworn Police Vehicles Values Expenditures Factors

2003 $22,543 10,163 40 21 36 $10,343,877 $6,435,132 3.01%

2004 $35,287 10,163 40 21 39 $10,102,658 $6,292,509 3.16%

2005 $28,421 10,163 40 21 44 $13,284,065 $4,261,232 2.87%

2006 $32,698 10,163 38 21 41 $13,729,947 $7,324,088 2.97%

2007 $35,250 10,163 37 21 47 $14,878,874 $8,231,945 3.24%

2008 $14,018 10,163 42 21 47 $15,769,510 $8,812,990 2.36%

2009 $12,643 10,163 43 21 47 $16,251,860 $10,011,595 2.27%

2010 $23,895 10,163 44 21 53 $17,180,169 $10,465,396 2.67%

2011 $27,561 10,163 43 21 56 $17,560,789 $12,026,355 2.97%

2012 $27,847 10,251 44 21 60 $17,936,640 $11,522,015 3.13%

Source: Association's internal records
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Miami Valley Risk Management Association
Risk Exposure Worksheet: City of Piqua Schedule 18

Last Ten Years

            Risk Exposure:
(Non-Police) Pool

Average Full-Time Full-Time Titled PP/RP Net Operating Contribution
Membership Year Annual Losses Population Employees Sworn Police Vehicles Values Expenditures Factors

2003 $7,202 20,738 186 33 136 $33,626,011 $32,986,000 5.86%

2004 $23,655 20,738 206 34 133 $32,732,217 $34,744,218 6.18%

2005 $30,392 20,738 190 33 130 $41,999,746 $33,038,871 6.22%

2006 $38,096 20,738 184 34 135 $45,125,669 $32,227,661 6.34%

2007 $51,735 20,738 181 33 129 $60,017,522 $33,569,792 7.17%

2008 $38,063 20,738 175 34 136 $56,595,892 $33,109,112 6.61%

2009 $42,118 20,738 170 31 141 $57,301,594 $40,094,414 6.74%

2010 $60,917 20,738 168 33 142 $62,544,120 $44,851,674 7.35%

2011 $54,193 20,738 160 31 140 $62,925,749 $42,344,214 7.10%

2012 $67,371 20,522 156 31 145 $64,525,119 $39,559,501 7.91%

Source: Association's internal records
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Miami Valley Risk Management Association
Risk Exposure Worksheet: City of Sidney Schedule 19

Last Ten Years

            Risk Exposure:
(Non-Police) Pool

Average Full-Time Full-Time Titled PP/RP Net Operating Contribution
Membership Year Annual Losses Population Employees Sworn Police Vehicles Values Expenditures Factors

2003 $36,326 20,211 164 39 147 $40,225,534 $20,100,764 7.19%

2004 $51,699 20,211 167 38 158 $45,720,596 $20,196,644 7.16%

2005 $51,659 20,211 163 40 163 $57,104,505 $21,044,762 7.23%

2006 $46,388 20,211 162 40 153 $65,531,414 $20,510,151 6.68%

2007 $48,008 20,211 164 40 158 $69,140,327 $22,601,163 6.96%

2008 $38,537 20,211 170 40 164 $64,339,420 $23,008,043 6.67%

2009 $39,636 20,211 170 40 158 $67,197,507 $24,766,441 6.55%

2010 $49,652 20,211 160 40 152 $72,897,123 $27,683,855 6.67%

2011 $58,830 20,211 153 40 154 $71,697,298 $24,349,332 7.10%

2012 $50,576 21,229 151 37 154 $73,442,513 $24,379,417 6.94%

Source: Association's internal records
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Miami Valley Risk Management Association
Risk Exposure Worksheet: City of Springdale Schedule 20

Last Ten Years

            Risk Exposure:
(Non-Police) Pool

Average Full-Time Full-Time Titled PP/RP Net Operating Contribution
Membership Year Annual Losses Population Employees Sworn Police Vehicles Values Expenditures Factors

2003 $29,174 10,563 83 36 68 $23,123,953 $12,508,712 4.68%

2004 $29,627 10,563 82 34 67 $23,073,127 $12,696,428 4.05%

2005 $27,350 10,563 80 36 62 $29,646,596 $12,841,833 3.95%

2006 $25,102 10,563 84 37 65 $30,988,399 $13,202,679 3.75%

2007 $26,461 10,563 85 38 68 $32,509,932 $14,542,467 3.95%

2008 $24,987 10,563 87 38 71 $31,648,857 $17,994,753 4.07%

2009 $17,448 10,563 88 39 74 $35,005,878 $16,818,005 3.63%

2010 $22,180 10,563 83 38 74 $35,784,392 $18,081,809 3.67%

2011 $20,750 10,563 82 36 73 $37,207,591 $17,144,932 3.63%

2012 $14,988 11,223 74 33 74 $37,960,645 $16,893,700 3.38%

Source: Association's internal records
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Miami Valley Risk Management Association
Risk Exposure Worksheet: City of Tipp City Schedule 21

Last Ten Years

            Risk Exposure:
(Non-Police) Pool

Average Full-Time Full-Time Titled PP/RP Net Operating Contribution
Membership Year Annual Losses Population Employees Sworn Police Vehicles Values Expenditures Factors

2003 $5,349 9,221 46 18 68 $16,307,088 $11,949,140 2.55%

2004 $6,682 9,221 46 18 70 $16,445,281 $12,559,398 2.39%

2005 $9,937 9,221 47 18 69 $20,322,137 $13,840,780 2.52%

2006 $9,262 9,221 47 18 72 $24,385,696 $14,211,700 2.48%

2007 $21,495 9,221 48 19 76 $26,021,606 $15,472,844 3.14%

2008 $23,783 9,221 49 19 73 $24,959,109 $15,048,997 3.28%

2009 $18,922 9,221 49 19 76 $24,987,692 $16,376,219 2.98%

2010 $20,083 9,221 48 19 77 $25,772,171 $17,518,594 2.91%

2011 $6,357 9,221 52 19 78 $25,554,338 $18,924,381 2.44%

2012 $14,726 9,689 48 18 84 $26,431,509 $18,352,038 2.87%

Source: Association's internal records
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Miami Valley Risk Management Association
Risk Exposure Worksheet: City of Troy Schedule 22

Last Ten Years

            Risk Exposure:
(Non-Police) Pool

Average Full-Time Full-Time Titled PP/RP Net Operating Contribution
Membership Year Annual Losses Population Employees Sworn Police Vehicles Values Expenditures Factors

2003 $18,660 21,999 182 43 112 $62,525,577 $23,791,474 6.83%

2004 $30,225 21,999 178 43 115 $63,813,939 $24,294,175 6.65%

2005 $35,497 21,999 177 44 124 $77,396,452 $27,471,778 6.94%

2006 $37,702 21,999 177 43 118 $84,397,086 $27,858,532 6.76%

2007 $49,901 21,999 176 44 119 $88,867,873 $27,363,186 7.39%

2008 $39,410 21,999 174 43 121 $80,039,525 $27,367,586 6.92%

2009 $33,829 21,999 161 41 117 $80,322,304 $26,193,873 6.27%

2010 $33,879 21,999 165 41 116 $77,486,302 $25,605,656 5.94%

2011 $43,029 21,999 149 40 118 $77,867,665 $26,778,965 6.37%

2012 $38,515 25,058 142 38 120 $80,019,303 $27,530,777 6.41%

Source: Association's internal records
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Miami Valley Risk Management Association
Risk Exposure Worksheet: City of Vandalia Schedule 23

Last Ten Years

            Risk Exposure:
(Non-Police) Pool

Average Full-Time Full-Time Titled PP/RP Net Operating Contribution
Membership Year Annual Losses Population Employees Sworn Police Vehicles Values Expenditures Factors

2003 $19,343 14,603 112 29 100 $36,149,713 $19,141,303 5.07%

2004 $19,806 14,603 118 29 99 $38,082,459 $18,574,603 4.56%

2005 $20,381 14,603 115 29 99 $48,979,419 $19,350,583 4.54%

2006 $23,566 14,603 123 30 93 $50,428,087 $19,824,621 4.54%

2007 $18,468 14,603 118 28 95 $53,098,177 $20,690,249 4.32%

2008 $24,989 14,603 117 30 93 $47,556,010 $32,656,673 4.99%

2009 $27,000 14,603 117 27 98 $46,902,604 $31,347,819 4.85%

2010 $33,159 14,603 111 30 99 $47,826,976 $21,950,659 4.64%

2011 $30,926 14,603 105 31 102 $51,524,679 $24,564,802 4.76%

2012 $40,729 15,246 108 31 101 $54,897,952 $19,643,180 5.30%

Source: Association's internal records
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Miami Valley Risk Management Association
Risk Exposure Worksheet: City of West Carrollton Schedule 24

Last Ten Years

            Risk Exposure:
(Non-Police) Pool

Average Full-Time Full-Time Titled PP/RP Net Operating Contribution
Membership Year Annual Losses Population Employees Sworn Police Vehicles Values Expenditures Factors

2003 $22,062 13,818 67 25 58 $15,689,856 $8,330,585 3.55%

2004 $18,061 13,818 56 25 58 $20,301,280 $8,767,533 3.09%

2005 $15,844 13,818 55 21 60 $21,166,332 $9,361,997 2.85%

2006 $12,940 13,818 60 24 61 $24,680,746 $9,002,248 2.73%

2007 $13,984 13,818 59 25 63 $25,803,945 $9,891,079 2.85%

2008 $17,078 13,818 59 24 66 $25,723,805 $10,397,925 3.06%

2009 $27,640 13,818 58 24 62 $26,000,157 $9,970,084 3.43%

2010 $22,032 13,818 59 23 62 $26,531,747 $10,387,085 2.99%

2011 $11,150 13,818 54 23 62 $27,224,795 $10,652,767 2.58%

2012 $3,556 13,143 50 22 62 $27,768,872 $11,157,776 2.21%

Source: Association's internal records

0.00%
2.00%
4.00%
6.00%
8.00%

10.00%
12.00%
14.00%
16.00%
18.00%
20.00%

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

West Carrollton Pool Contribution Factors 
2003-2012

180



Miami Valley Risk Management Association
Risk Exposure Worksheet: City of Wilmington Schedule 25

Last Ten Years

            Risk Exposure:
(Non-Police) Pool

Average Full-Time Full-Time Titled PP/RP Net Operating Contribution
Membership Year Annual Losses Population Employees Sworn Police Vehicles Values Expenditures Factors

2003 $38,635 11,921 133 25 96 $37,377,153 $15,365,058 5.96%

2004 $52,273 11,921 133 21 92 $36,297,978 $15,799,760 5.65%

2005 $24,349 11,921 132 21 95 $46,559,815 $15,650,346 4.41%

2006 $26,100 11,921 136 25 98 $47,099,720 $15,892,082 4.41%

2007 $23,775 11,921 133 25 108 $51,630,834 $17,491,855 4.47%

2008 $35,067 11,921 132 28 103 $50,083,349 $17,984,470 5.13%

2009 $69,919 11,921 134 26 120 $50,923,011 $19,574,067 6.71%

2010 $94,831 11,921 137 23 124 $53,447,136 $19,616,027 7.15%

2011 $76,912 11,921 124 22 124 $69,015,342 $20,294,238 6.83%

2012 $48,948 12,520 121 22 124 $71,065,287 $18,452,322 5.80%

Source: Association's internal records

0.00%
2.00%
4.00%
6.00%
8.00%

10.00%
12.00%
14.00%
16.00%
18.00%
20.00%

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Wilmington Pool Contribution Factors
2002-2011

181



Miami Valley Risk Management Association
Risk Exposure Worksheet: City of Wyoming Schedule 26

Last Ten Years

            Risk Exposure:
(Non-Police) Pool

Average Full-Time Full-Time Titled PP/RP Net Operating Contribution
Membership Year Annual Losses Population Employees Sworn Police Vehicles Values Expenditures Factors

2003 $32,065 8,261 32 16 32 $15,109,910 $6,694,956 3.41%

2004 $38,664 8,261 36 16 34 $14,664,905 $6,615,983 3.20%

2005 $23,717 8,261 34 16 33 $19,266,717 $7,797,919 2.61%

2006 $23,900 8,261 35 15 34 $20,230,493 $7,609,654 2.46%

2007 $10,718 8,261 36 14 33 $21,208,369 $7,889,716 1.90%

2008 $14,994 8,261 35 19 37 $24,641,938 $9,899,786 2.36%

2009 $22,523 8,261 33 19 39 $26,099,340 $9,575,827 2.64%

2010 $29,510 8,261 34 19 35 $27,395,791 $10,090,694 2.74%

2011 $40,342 8,261 35 19 36 $27,060,852 $11,717,375 3.37%

2012 $41,804 8,428 32 19 37 $27,751,953 $10,075,580 3.57%

Source: Association's internal records
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Miami Valley Risk Management Association
Operating Information by Component Schedule 27 

Last Ten Years

                                 Year Ended December 31

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Number of Members 17                20                20                20                20                20                20                20                20                20                

Number of Staff 4                  4                  4                  4                  4                  4                  4                  4                  4                  4                  

Number of Claims 450              383              395              353              404              429              347              363              416              337              

Number of Training Sessions 27                44                36                29                37                25                39                29                23                32                

Note: The MVRMA staff addresses its members' risk management and risk financing needs, acts as a clearing house for risk related information, 
administers a claims/litigation management program, and provides extensive safety/loss control consulting and training.

Source:  Employment Records, Association's internal records

183



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

88 East Broad Street, Fourth Floor, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3506 
Phone:  614-466-4514 or 800-282-0370          Fax:  614-466-4490 

www.ohioauditor.gov 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 

MIAMI VALLEY RISK MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION 
 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 
 
 

CLERK’S CERTIFICATION 
This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office of the 
Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed in Columbus, Ohio. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

CLERK OF THE BUREAU 
 
CERTIFIED 
AUGUST 1, 2013 
 

 


	Cover
	Cover Letter
	Compliance Section
	CAFR Section
	Introductory Section
	Financial Section
	Statistical Section



